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The Honourable Stirling Hinchliffe MP
Minister for Local Government, Minister for Racing and 
Minister for Multicultural Affairs
1 William Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000

Dear Minister Hinchliffe

I am pleased to submit for presentation to the Parliament, the Annual Report 2018–19 and financial statements for the 
Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs.

This report is prepared in line with the current administrative arrangements for this department applying for the whole  
of the 2018–19 financial year. It reflects the structure, operations and performance of the department as it existed at  
30 June 2019.

I certify that this Annual Report complies with:

• the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance  
Management Standard 2019 

• the detailed requirements set out in the Annual Report requirements for Queensland Government agencies.  
A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found at page 87 of this report.

Yours sincerely

Warwick Agnew 
Director-General
Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs

Letter of compliance
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Director-General’s foreword

I am pleased to present the 2018-19 Annual Report for the Department of 
Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs. Throughout the year, 
the department has taken significant steps towards achieving its vision 
by engaging with stakeholders, taking an energetic response to new and 
emerging opportunities and delivering on government’s priorities through  
the completion of key projects and policies. 

Developing a shared understanding of common goals is integral to delivering 
on the department’s vision—key partners include the state’s 77 local 
governments, the Local Government Association of Queensland, Local 
Government Managers’ Australia, Local Government Finance Professionals 
of Queensland, Electoral Commission of Queensland, Office of the 
Independent Assessor, Crime and Conduct Commission, Queensland Integrity 
Commissioner, Racing Queensland, the broader racing community, Ethnic 
Communities Council of Queensland and dedicated stakeholders throughout 
Queensland who help promote and celebrate multiculturalism and support 
vulnerable people from culturally diverse backgrounds.

Through a consistent and dedicated approach to working with stakeholders, 
significant milestones were achieved by the department in 2018-19 across all 
three areas of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs.

The passing of the Local Government (Councillor Complaints) and Other 
Legislation Amendment Act 2018 established the Office of the Independent 
Assessor to assess and manage councillor conduct complaints in Queensland. 
The Office opened its doors on 3 December 2018 as a major milestone in 
implementing the new framework for management of accountability, integrity 
and transparency in the local government sector.  

The department has also continued to develop and deliver targeted training 
and resources that build councillors’ understanding of their obligations 
and responsibilities. Our endeavors have contributed to more transparent 
processes, the sustainable management of assets and infrastructure, and 
sound decision making in the public interest. 

The department has been implementing the Queensland Government’s local 
government grant programs such as Works for Queensland and the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies programs which will inject more than 
$700 million over five years from 2016-21 into local economies supporting 
capital projects and the creation of employment opportunities across 
the state. 

Later in 2019, the implementation plan developed with significant input from 
stakeholders for a new Grants to Local Government Model will streamline 
funding administration processes to create efficiencies for both local 
governments and across the State Government.

Recognising the significant economic and social contribution of Queensland’s 
racing industry to the state, the department facilitated a Racing Industry 
Forum in March 2019 in collaboration with Racing Queensland. The forum 
brought together more than 60 stakeholders from all codes to discuss a  
reform agenda which will modernise Queensland’s racing industry.
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A key outcome of the Forum was receiving the racing industry’s agreement to 
reform, as part of the Queensland Government’s commitment of an additional 
$26 million in prize money for Queensland thoroughbred racing and a further 
$12 million over three years for greyhound and harness racing. This new 
investment in the racing industry builds on government’s commitment in  
2017-18 of $70.4 million over four years for country racing.

Delivering on the vision of the Queensland Multicultural Policy: Our story,  
our future, to promote an inclusive, harmonious and united Queensland,  
the department continued to engage with government agencies to deliver  
the final year of the first three-year Multicultural Action Plan. 

Key outcomes include the Department of Education’s Refugee and Asylum 
Seeker Early Childhood Pilot Program, positive employment and training 
outcomes for participants from culturally and linguistically diverse 
backgrounds in the Department of Employment, Small Business and Training’s 
Skilling Queenslanders for Work initiative; and the Queensland Police Service’s 
Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Recruitment Preparation Program.

The department’s positioning of the Multicultural Affairs portfolio alongside 
the Local Government portfolio presents a significant opportunity to 
demonstrate inclusive growth, which brings together a multitude of 
stakeholders in support of migrants and refugees. In 2018, the department 
established a partnership with Welcoming Cities, an organisation that 
supports local councils and their communities to build an understanding of 
regional opportunities to attract and retain new arrivals. This has been an 
important step towards boosting declining populations across the state and 
creating economic opportunity with and for regional and remote communities.

Significant interest has been received from government and industry since the 
departments’ release of Deloitte Access Economics landmark report Seizing 
the opportunity: Making the most of the skills and experience of migrants and 
refugees. Providing evidence that Queensland’s economy could benefit from 
a boost of $250 million over the next 10 years, if the skills and experience of 
people who are migrants and refugees are recognised, the Report is a call to 
action for government, industry and the community. 

I would like to thank our stakeholders, the department’s executive leadership 
team and our employees across all regions. Their commitment and dedication 
in delivering programs, policy and services contributes to our shared goal to 
improve outcomes for all Queenslanders.
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About the department

Legislation 
The Department of Local Government, Racing and 
Multicultural Affairs administers the following portfolio 
legislation from which its functions and powers are derived:

City of Brisbane Act 2010 – Is specific to Brisbane City 
Council and provides for its constitution and the unique 
nature and extent of its responsibilities and powers.  
The City of Brisbane Act 2010 aligns with the Local 
Government Act 2009 where appropriate.

Local Government Act 2009 – Provides a legal framework 
for a system of local government in Queensland that is 
accountable, effective, efficient and sustainable as well 
as for the way in which a local government is constituted 
and the nature and extent of its responsibilities and 
powers. It ensures that the local government jurisdiction is 
sufficiently recognised to support each local government 
to take responsibility for the good rule and governance of 
its area.

Local Government Electoral Act 2011 – Provides for the 
transparent management and conduct of elections of 
Queensland local government councillors.

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Communities  
(Justice, Land and Other Matters) Act 1984 (Part 9,  
Div 2 and Part 10) – The department continues to be 
responsible for transitional provisions for any local law 
making process that was started but not finished at the 
time the Community Services (Aborigines) Act 1984 was 
replaced (Part 9, Division 2), and transitional provisions  
for the continued appointment of police officers, members 
of certain boards and community groups under the  
Local Government and Other Legislation (Indigenous 
Regional Councils) Amendment Act 2007 (Part 10).

Multicultural Recognition Act 2016 – Establishes the 
Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council, introduces 
the Multicultural Queensland Charter and provides 
for a Multicultural Policy and Action Plan. The Act 
also requires chief executives of government entities 
to ensure employees are aware of the Multicultural 
Charter, the Multicultural Policy and Action Plan and how 
those documents apply to the work of their employees. 
Employees of government entities must consider the 
Multicultural Charter when developing policies or 
providing services of the entity.

Racing Act 2002 – The department is one of two 
Queensland Government departments responsible for the 
oversight of legislation which enables the operation of 
the racing industry in Queensland and has administrative 
oversight of Racing Queensland.

Roles and functions
The Department of Local Government, Racing and 
Multicultural Affairs vision is for a contemporary 
organisation enabling sustainable, vibrant, inclusive  
and confident communities.

Through collaboration, engagement and professional 
leadership, the department has steadfastly pursued its 
priorities by designing, delivering and administering 
policy, legislative and administrative frameworks that 
inspire confidence and trust in systems of governance 
across the portfolio responsibilities. It has acted 
to increase stakeholder capability across the local 
government, multicultural and racing sectors and to 
support and encourage communities to thrive.

The department has contributed to the Queensland 
Government’s Our Future State: Advancing Queensland’s 
Priorities by:

• creating jobs and a diverse economy through enabling 
councils to deliver and maintain resilient community 
infrastructure and essential services

• providing responsive and integrated services to the 
local government sector, the racing industry and 
community, and diverse cultural groups.

Employees work in Brisbane’s central business district 
and in regional offices across Queensland – in Cairns, 
Townsville, Rockhampton, Bundaberg, Maryborough, 
Toowoomba and Maroochydore. Important connections are 
made through the departments’ regional staff, enabling 
greater collaboration with local governments, supporting 
local communities in times of natural disaster, fostering 
closer relationships across regions and facilitating 
communication between our stakeholders and various 
levels of government.  

The department is committed to the Queensland public 
service values – encouraged to be courageous, to turn 
ideas into action and to contribute to the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the organisation. 
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Multicultural Affairs 
Queensland

Finance, Performance  
and Programs Racing PolicyStrategy and  

Service Delivery 

Grants 
Review

Office of 
Chief Engineer

Corporate 
Services

Financial 
Services

Director-General

Local Government Division

The division administers local government legislation, 
undertakes programs and initiatives to support and 
promote the state’s 77 local governments and provides 
advice to local government and the community on the 
local government system. It delivers practical and 
useful capacity building programs and resources and 
manages and administers a range of local government 
funding programs and includes the Office of the Chief 
Engineer and the local government grants review 
project team. 

Strategy, Governance and Engagement Division

The division facilitates the social and economic 
participation of Queenslanders from culturally 
and linguistically diverse backgrounds through 
initiatives that build a united, harmonious and 
inclusive Queensland; the sustainability of 
Queensland’s racing industry through funding 
programs, policy advice and legislation; and 
provides whole of department corporate, strategic, 
policy and engagement functions.

Organisational structure
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Our operating environment 
Local governments play an important role in the daily lives 
of Queenslanders providing good governance, sound and 
professional financial management and the delivery of 
services in the communities they serve. 

In 2018-19, the department has continued to pursue a 
thorough and detailed process of legislative reform and 
the rollout of training programs and online resources 
in response to outcomes of the review of the 2016 local 
government elections, which highlighted instances of 
inappropriate and irregular conduct in some jurisdictions. 

The recurring nature of these issues, despite increased 
regulation and oversight of local government elections, 
political donations and councillor conduct over time, has 
highlighted the potential for adverse public perceptions 
of and confidence in the integrity and transparency of 
local governments.

The departments’ rolling reform agenda aims to further 
advance the quality and reputation of local government 
in Queensland with a view to improving community 
perceptions, restoring confidence in local governments  
and improving transparency, integrity and accountability  
in council elections and decision-making.

The department works closely with other government 
agencies and a range of corporate and community 
organisations to promote the benefits of diversity,  
build intercultural connections and support equitable 
access and opportunity for all Queenslanders.

Queensland’s diversity is on the rise and the diversity of  
our workforce, our policies, services and programs need 
to be reflective of, and responsive to, the people we 
serve. From 2006 to 2016 the number of Queenslanders 
born overseas has increased from 700,000 to more 
than one million – 1 in 5 Queenslanders. In addition, 
language diversity has increased with over half a million 
Queenslanders (more than 1 in 10) speaking a language 
other than English at home. 

Local and overseas events such as the 2019 terrorist 
attacks in Christchurch and in Sri Lanka, have a significant 
impact on local communities. The department’s 
understanding of and engagement with diverse 
communities, and our ability to garner corporate and  
cross government connections enabled us to respond 
quickly to those events delivering appropriate messages  
of support and providing links to relevant information  
and support services.  

Queensland’s racing industry contributes $1.5 billion to 
the state’s economy, with thoroughbred racing the third 
most popular spectator sport in Australia and is a vital 
aspect of community life in many towns and cities across 
Queensland.  With the viability and sustainability of racing 
integral to the state’s social fabric, the industry is adapting 
to changes in consumer behaviors, a growing competitive 
presence of corporate bookmakers, an updated betting 
tax regime and the impacts of operating across Australia’s 
most decentralised state.

In this environment, industry strategies to keep racing 
strong focus on four key areas: 

• industry and government engagement
• promoting better commercial outcomes
• delivering racing infrastructure across Queensland
• stronger governance arrangements between Racing 

Queensland and race clubs.  

To this end, the government’s $38 million prize money 
and reform package across all three codes has focused 
on industry engagement, governance, infrastructure and 
commercialisation. 
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Year in review

$17.6 million
86 of 104

actions

$119.5 
million 

$26 
million 

$1.78 
million 

across three rounds of funding under 
the Works for Queensland program 
delivering more than 1,350 minor 
works and essential infrastructure 
projects in 65 local governments.

$600 
million

$2.3 million

Established the Office of the 
Independent Assessor to manage 
councillor conduct complaints. 

in funding through the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
Program from 2017-21 programs  
to support 170 priority local 
government capital works projects. 

to support Queensland country 
race clubs. 

increase in prize money for Queensland 
thoroughbred racing and an additional 
$12 million over three years for 
greyhound and harness racing. 

Led the implementation of the  
whole-of-government Multicultural 
Action Plan 2016-19, of which 

in funding to 19 organisations 
through the Community Action for 
a Multicultural Society program to 
build intercultural connection for 
groups and individuals in the wider 
community. 

for the Celebrating Multicultural Queensland program with 
$2 million allocated to support over 164 events and projects 
celebrating multiculturalism and providing opportunities for 
social and economic participation for everyone. 

funding through the Asylum Seeker  
and Refugee Assistance initiative to 
deliver practical support to vulnerable 
asylum seekers and temporary 
protection visa holders.

Engaged Welcoming Cities to support 
regional local governments in 
attracting, growing and retaining 
diversity and improve social and 
cultural participation.

Welcomed 21 new organisations 
to the Multicultural Queensland 
Ambassador Program, bringing the 
total number to 101 Ambassador 
organisations.

were completed and 17 actions  
partially completed as at 30 June 2019. 

Funding doubled

9Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs 



2018–19 Highlights 

A new Grants to Local 
Government Model 
The Grants Review Project will result in the implementation 
of a new and more efficient Grants to Local Government 
Model. The new model will apply to all local government 
grant funding from State Government agencies and 
is designed to be simple and adaptable and offer a 
coordinated approach. It will provide value for the state, 
while being responsive to community priorities. The new 
model encompasses:

• a single web page for grants to local government
• fewer departments administering grants
• alignment of program timeframes with council budget 

cycles wherever possible
• a single head funding agreement between the state 

and local governments
• consistent and standard templates for guidelines  

and applications
• quarterly reporting and/or project milestone reporting
• inclusion of funding for non-capital activities within 

infrastructure programs
• improved early stakeholder involvement and more time 

for councils to deliver projects (minimum two years).

Extensive engagement has occurred during the project with 
all 77 local governments provided the opportunity for input 
and state agencies and industry stakeholders involved in 
key consultation activities and working groups. Feedback 
has provided significant direction for the new model which 
is expected to be in operation by the end of 2019.

Due to the substantial response from over 90% of  
councils and local government stakeholder representative 
bodies – Local Government Association of Queensland, 
Local Government Managers Australia and Local 
Government Finance Professionals of Queensland – the 
department has been able to deliver a comprehensive  
and contemporary grants framework for all state agencies 
to leverage and ensure councils needs are at the center 
of local government grant design and evaluation. 

Capacity building program 
Through the department’s capacity building program, 
close to 1,500 participants, including councillors and  
staff from 76 councils, undertook capacity building during 
2018-19. The program included information for local 
government election candidates, induction training for 
newly elected or recently appointed councillors, Tropical 
Council financial reporting workshops, professional 
development provided through the department’s Women  
in Local Government Strategy and governance and financial 
training provided by external training organisations.

Following legislative amendments to change the 
requirements for managing conflicts of interest, prohibiting 
developer donations and introducing a new councillor 
conduct and complaints framework, the department 
provided face to face training to more than 900 participants 
across 76 councils. Participants who provided feedback on 
the training recorded a satisfaction rating of 97%.

The department values client engagement with 
stakeholders, and has also employed modern approaches 
to engagement – webinars, online discussion papers and 
its first online training course on the mandatory Code 
of Conduct for Councillors in Queensland, which was 
introduced on 3 December 2018. Further online courses 
and materials will be developed in 2019-20.  

Works for Queensland 
Commencing in 2016-17 and with funding available up 
to 2020-21, Works for Queensland is now a $600 million 
program supporting local governments outside South  
East Queensland to undertake job-creating maintenance 
and minor infrastructure projects.

With funding provided for a variety of maintenance and 
minor infrastructure works that create local jobs, boost 
local economies and increase livability, the program has 
been an enormous success in towns and cities across 
regional Queensland. The latest round of Works for 
Queensland has been expanded to focus on providing 
job opportunities for young people not in education, 
employment or training.
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Charles Moroney Park 
Townsville received $23.24 million through the 2017-19 
Works for Queensland program to undertake 18 projects 
which have supported or created a total of 314 jobs.  
As part of this funding, the Council received $4.4 million 
towards the Charles Moroney Park Upgrade and supported 
35 jobs.  

The project provided a comprehensive upgrade of Charles 
Moroney Park to a District Recreational and District Sports 
Standard. The upgrade included the establishment of a 
new teen play area and fitness course, a new pump track 
for cyclists and a new car park. Along with these works, 
the rugby league and soccer fields and dog off-leash area 
were upgraded. Other improvements included building 
or installing additional shelters, seating, irrigation, 
landscaping and drainage to improve the amenity for 
visitors and nearby residents.

Nature Based Play Space at Plantation Park  
in the Burdekin
The Queensland Government contributed $2 million towards 
the design and construction of the Burdekin Shire Council’s 
Nature Based Play Space at Plantation Park. Designed to 
complement the natural bush setting, the state-of-the-
art play space was designed with accessibility in mind 
and takes inspiration from the surrounding natural bush 
setting featuring a plethora of natural materials such as 
timber, grass, smoothed stones, river sand and water. It 
provides a wonderful and unique space for the Burdekin 
community. The works were funded using $1.5 million from 
a 2017 election commitment and an additional $500,000 
from the 2017-19 Works for Queensland program. 

Charles Moroney Park

Burdekin Nature Based Play Space
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Tree lined streets and an upgraded 
aquatic centre in Blackall Tambo  
Blackall Tambo Regional Council’s plan to tree line their 
streets was given a helping hand through the Works for 
Queensland program. Rather than purchasing trees and 
transporting them at significant cost to Blackall, the council 
now grows its own. Apart from a significant cost saving, 
the saplings produced are native to the area and already 
acclimatised, with a considerably higher survival rate than  
if the trees were brought into the area. 

March of the Dungarees memorial

Blackall Aquatic Centre

March of the Dungarees memorial at  
Warwick’s Leslie Park
The Memorial commemorates the March of the 
Dungarees which commenced in Warwick in 1915  
with the intention of recruiting men for World War 1.  
At the start of the march, 28 local men enlisted and  
by the time the march reached Brisbane the number  
had increased to 128.

Aged pipework at the Blackall Aquatic Centre was leaking 
significant amounts of water, estimated at 60,000 litres per 
day – a major concern during such an extended period of 
drought. The council used Works for Queensland funding 
to install new pipework. The new infrastructure will pay for 
itself through reduced water and chlorination costs.

The Mayor of Blackall Tambo Regional Council said, ‘During 
the toughest economic and climatic period on record, Works 
for Queensland has kept our regional infrastructure and 
social cohesion on a demonstratively positive level and 
has maintained employment with the upgrading and or 
development of our major assets’.
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Graham Andrews Park at Charleville

Aerial view of the Horn Island filtration plant

Graham Andrews Park at Charleville  
The regeneration of this park has not only seen an 
immediate increase in community use but has been 
awarded the Parks and Leisure Australia Park of the Year 
award. The project included beautification of the lake 
area, pathways, interpretive signage, installation of park 
furniture and free electric barbecues.

The Graham Andrews Park forms part of the significant 
wetland of the Warrego River Floodplain and supports 
thousands of water birds. It is also home to the vulnerable  
Major Mitchell cockatoo, barking owls and red-tailed black 
cockatoos. The regeneration of the natural habitat for these 
and other wildlife along with water conservation measures 
has been an important part of creating an environmentally 
rich setting which is welcoming to all.

Infrastructure projects in 
Indigenous local government areas 
Filtration plant on Horn Island 
The 2018-19 State Budget provided $12 million over two 
financial years to improve the safety and quality of drinking 
water on Horn, Thursday and Hammond Islands. So far, 
the Torres Shire Council has installed temporary filtration 
units at the Horn Island water treatment plant to address 
water quality issues and to ensure long term access to 
healthy drinking water. More work is planned for the 2019 
dry season.  
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Local Government Grants  
and Subsidies Program
Investment under the Local Government Grants and 
Subsidies Program supports councils to deliver priority 
infrastructure projects that contribute to sustainable 
and livable communities and support local employment 
opportunities. The results can be seen in the diversity of 
community projects completed in 2018-19.  

State Emergency Services Centre at  
Arana Hills 
Moreton Bay Regional Council received more than $1 
million from the 2017-19 Local Government Grants and 
Subsidies Program towards the delivery of a purpose-
built State Emergency Services Depot to support the 
operations of the Arana Hills State Emergency Service. 
The project included the construction and fit-out of a new 
administration building with adjoining storage shed and 
standalone vehicle accommodation. The Arana Hills State 
Emergency Service group now has increased capacity to 
deliver core community activities including storm damage 
operations, flood operations, land search activities and 
other emergency support services.

State Emergency Services Centre at Arana Hills  

Inglewood Effluent Disposal Project

Inglewood Effluent Disposal Project 
The joint project between the Queensland Government 
and the Goondiwindi Regional Council has resolved 
environmental issues with the disposal of treated effluent 
from the Inglewood sewerage treatment plant. The effluent 
is now compliant with Environmental Protection Agency 
guidelines. The treated water is used for irrigating 
horticultural crops in the Inglewood area supporting the 
region’s agricultural industry. 
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Queensland Multicultural Policy 
and Action Plan 2016-19
Established under the Multicultural Recognition Act 2016, 
‘Our story, our future’ is the Queensland Government’s 
Multicultural Policy promoting an inclusive, harmonious  
and united Queensland. 

The Multicultural Policy focuses on the Queensland 
Government’s commitment for people from culturally  
diverse backgrounds, and for Queensland as a whole,  
across three priorities:

• achieving culturally responsive government
• supporting inclusive, harmonious and united 

communities
• improving economic opportunities.

2018-19 was the final year of implementation for the first 
Queensland Multicultural Action Plan, which was released in 
2016 and committed 35 government agencies to 104 actions 
over a three-year period.

Examples of outcomes achieved include:

• 207 children from refugee or asylum seeker 
backgrounds enrolled in the Department of Education’s 
Refugee and Asylum Seeker Early Childhood 
Pilot Program 

• two intakes involving over 40 recruits were involved 
in the Queensland Police Service’s Culturally and 
Linguistically Diverse Recruit Preparation Program 

• over 6,800 migrants and refugees participated in 
TAFE Queensland’s Adult Migrant English Program 
annually across 40 delivery sites, including 900 
humanitarian entrants who were provided with 
English and settlement support via the Special 
Preparatory Program 

• more than 5,660 participants from culturally diverse 
backgrounds have been placed on pathways to 
employment since the reinstatement of the Department 
of Employment, Small Business and Training’s Skilling 
Queenslanders for Work initiative 

• engaged 101 Multicultural Queensland Ambassador 
organisations to provide employment and training 
programs for refugees and migrants through the 
Department of Local Government, Racing and 
Multicultural Affairs’ Multicultural Queensland 
Ambassador Program. 

Roma Saleyards 

Roma Saleyards upgrade 
The Roma Saleyards is the largest livestock selling 
complex in Australia with yarding capacity exceeding 
10,000 head. $1.3 million was provided under the 
2017-19 Local Government Grants and Subsidies 
Program towards the $2 million upgrade project which 
has enhanced the capacity and efficiency of saleyard 
operations, streamlined the flow of cattle and improved 
animal safety.
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Multicultural Queensland  
Advisory Council
The Multicultural Recognition Act 2016 establishes the 
Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council. The Minister 
for Multicultural Affairs chairs the 11-member Council, 
which advises on opportunities and barriers facing people 
from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds and 
developing and implementing government policies about 
cultural diversity and inclusion. 

The Council met five times in 2018-19 providing advice 
on a range of matters, including opportunities presented 
through the Deloitte Access Economics report, Seizing the 
opportunity: Making the most of the skills and experience 
of migrants and refugees; Queensland Multicultural 
Month; and engaging with the media to encourage more 
balanced and factual reporting relating to culturally 
and linguistically diverse communities and promoting 
positive stories.

The Council also met with Directors-General and senior 
executives from four different departments and six 
government agencies to advise and give feedback on  
the progress of actions in the first Queensland 
Multicultural Action Plan and recommend ways to 
strengthen their approach. Members of the Council also 
held an additional meeting with the chairs and secretariats 
of Parliamentary Committees to provide advice on ways 
to improve their engagement with Queenslanders from 
culturally diverse backgrounds.

Building connections – 
Community Action for a 
Multicultural Society 
In 2018-19 the Queensland Government provided 19 
community-based organisations across Queensland with 
$2.3 million under the Community Action for a Multicultural 
Society Program. The program is valued for the way 
it builds connected communities, removes barriers to 
participation and makes a positive difference to people’s 
lives.  Highlights include:

• Mercy Community Services (Toowoomba) worked with 
the Yazidi community from Northern Iraq to organise 
the inaugural commemoration of the Yazidi Genocide. 
The commemoration was broadcast on local television 
and attended by almost 500 people. The program  
also recruited 49 parents and children from culturally 
and linguistically diverse backgrounds to enter a  
prize-winning float in the 2018 Toowoomba Festival  
of Flowers.  

• Multicultural Communities Council (Gold Coast) 
organised the 2018 Walk Together event held at the 
Broadwater Parklands Gold Coast attended by an 
estimated 800 people. The walk included Syrian, 
Niuean, Maori, Indonesian and Brazilian cultural stops. 

• Good Shepherd Parish (Mt Isa) assisted isolated 
women to access local driving schools, TAFE courses, 
English speaking programs and a new computer  
room to access employment opportunities. The 
program supported 10 of the 14 new participants  
into employment.

• The Neighbourhood Hub (Mackay) delivered an 
International Day for World Indigenous People 
including a Yarning Circle with local Indigenous 
groups, an International Literacy Day and World Café 
Christmas Carols event. Diverse families were able to 
connect with the wider community and gain exposure 
to different cultures and receive information on how to 
access services.

Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council members
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Multicultural Queensland Ambassador Program – Sporting Organisations 

Multicultural Queensland 
Ambassador Program
The Multicultural Queensland Ambassador Program 
aims to empower Queensland’s leading corporations, 
institutions and organisations to embed the Multicultural 
Queensland Charter within their workforce and 
business practices. 

Organisations nominate an Ambassador representative 
to lead this process, which includes assisting their 
organisation to commit to the Charter, strengthen their 
cultural capability and adopt best practices to promote 
cultural diversity and inclusion. The department supports 
Ambassador organisations by facilitating connections, 
providing learning resources and designing and 
delivering exclusive events and activities to encourage 
positive action.

In 2018-19, the department welcomed 21 new 
organisations to the Ambassador program taking the 
total number of Ambassador organisations to 101–this 
includes 18 cultural advisor organisations who work within 
the multicultural sector and are well placed to advise 
and partner with corporations to deliver diversity and 
inclusion initiatives. 

Multicultural Queensland Ambassador Program – Business Organisations

Highlights include:

• Suncorp partnered with Multicultural Development 
Australia to improve financial literacy and expand 
employment pathways for vulnerable migrants and 
refugees, leading to the direct employment of nine 
Multicultural Development Australia clients this year.

• Football Queensland and ACCESS Community Services 
are partnering to deliver several all-ages multisport 
events to encourage greater diversity and participation.

• Randstad partnered with Multicultural Development 
Australia to deliver a six-week mentoring program for 
young people from migrant and refugee backgrounds 
to help prepare them for the workplace, and 
secure employment.
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Supporting intercultural 
connections and pathways to 
participation   
The Celebrating Multicultural Queensland Program 
is an annual program that provides funding towards 
multicultural events and projects that engage people from 
culturally diverse backgrounds to contribute to building an 
inclusive, harmonious and united Queensland. In 2018-19 
the department allocated funding to over 164 events and 
initiatives. Highlights that reinforce the importance of 
building connections in early-life include:   

Multicultural Plaza at the Brisbane EKKA

2018 Multicultural Queensland Awards

Queensland  
Multicultural Month
Queensland Multicultural Month is the state’s largest 
multicultural celebration held in August each year. 
Queensland is a multicultural success story and the 
month presents an opportunity to showcase and 
celebrate our unique diversity and its benefits. People 
from across the state come together to perform, share, 
taste, listen, learn and acknowledge that, while we 
may come from different cultures, we all love living 
in Queensland. 

Highlights include:

• Multicultural Queensland Awards - since 1990 the 
awards have recognised the valuable contributions 
of Queenslanders who support and promote an 
inclusive, harmonious and united Queensland 
community. In 2018, 133 state-wide nominations were 
received, and the award winners were announced at a 
gala lunch with 426 guests in attendance.

• Multicultural Race Day - the inaugural Multicultural 
Race Day was held at Doomben Racecourse in 
partnership with Brisbane Racing Club featuring 
multicultural entertainment and ‘Diversity Dash’ and 
‘Global Gallop’ races. 

• Multicultural Plaza at the Brisbane EKKA - featuring 
a diverse array of talented Queensland musicians, 
the Multicultural Plaza Music Stage was attended by 
over 414,000 people.

• Culture Train Regional Music Tour - in partnership 
with BEMAC, the Culture Train tour visited 15 
locations across Queensland including North 

• Circus workshops in Townsville involving 25 students 
from diverse cultural backgrounds in grades 6 to 
10 have helped to build self-esteem and confidence 
and build connections with other students.

• More than 110 high school students from Pacific 
Islander communities in Logan were engaged in a 
day long leadership development workshop that 
promoted increased self-confidence and practical 
knowledge about how they can progress towards 
life goals, including pathways to employment 
and higher education opportunities.

• 17 high school students from diverse cultural 
backgrounds from grades 7 to 11 were engaged in 
a series of music workshops in Brisbane, which 
provided an opportunity for them to share both 
experiences and future plans as a migrant or refugee 
through songs and musical performances. 

Stradbroke Island, Roma, Gladstone, Emerald, 
Charleville, Chinchilla, Dalby, Longreach, 
Barcaldine, Rockhampton, Childers, Cherbourg, 
Toowoomba, Ipswich and Brisbane. 
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Scenes from the forum 

Racing forum brings  
stakeholders together to  
deliver industry reform
In October 2018, the Queensland Government agreed to 
increase funding levels for Queensland thoroughbred 
TAB race meetings by $26 million in exchange for a 
commitment to broader industry reforms with $18 million 
released from 1 November 2018. 

In March 2019, the department in collaboration with 
Racing Queensland held a Racing Industry Forum bringing 
together government and over 60 racing industry 
stakeholders from all codes to discuss a reform agenda 
with the aim of achieving a more sustainable racing 
industry in Queensland.

Following this consultation and the development of 
key racing industry reform initiatives, the Queensland 
Government agreed to release the remaining $8 million 
of the $26 million thoroughbred TAB prize money and an 
additional $12 million over three years for greyhound and 
harness racing.

This is in addition to the government’s commitment of 
$70.4 million until 2020-21 to support country racing in 
recognition of the significant social and economic benefits 
of country racing to regional communities across the state.

Actions committed to through the Racing Industry  
Forum include:

• the attendance of the Minister for Racing at a minimum 
of one of each racing code panel meeting per annum

• Racing Queensland is to review racing products in 
Queensland to ensure best commercial outcomes 
across all codes of racing

• Racing Queensland will convert non-TAB racing to TAB 
racing across all codes, where viable

• the department and Racing Queensland will support 
race clubs to diversify and promote the practice of 
multi-use facilities

• the Minister for Racing will consider hosting a second 
all-codes industry and government forum to evaluate 
progress against reform initiatives

• race clubs will actively seek to add people from more 
diverse backgrounds and independent members 
to their boards and committees, as a modern best-
practice governance model.
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Delivering on the department’s  
Strategic Plan 2018–22
With a vision for a contemporary organisation enabling 
sustainable, vibrant, inclusive and confident local 
communities, the department advances the Queensland 
Government’s Our Future State: Advancing Queensland 
Priorities of creating jobs in a strong economy and be a 
responsive government by:

• designing and administering frameworks that inspire 
confidence and trust in systems of governance 

• increasing stakeholder capability 
• encouraging and supporting communities to thrive. 

Achievements and performance 
The realisation of benefits has been underpinned by objectives and strategies set out in the  
Strategic Plan 2018-22 as follows:

OBJECTIVE

Accountable, well-managed, community-focused local governments 
To achieve this objective the department determined to: 

• establish the Office of the Independent Assessor and transition to a streamlined councillor conduct  
complaints system

• develop, implement and promote an integrated framework of policy, legislation, funding and capacity building 
programs that support integrity and financial sustainability

• develop a performance and reporting framework that supports transparency, accountability and community 
confidence in local government.
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           KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

• Established the Office of the Independent Assessor which commenced operation on 3 December 2018.
• Undertook a comprehensive legislation program which included: 

 – amendments to the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Electoral Act 2011 and associated 
regulations to deliver further reforms in response to the Crime and Corruption Commission’s report Operation 
Belcarra: A blueprint for integrity and addressing corruption risk in local government report. 

 – Introduction of the Local Government Electoral (Implementing Stage 2 of Belcarra) and Other Legislation 
Amendment Bill 2019 into Parliament on 1 May 2019. The Bill is underpinned by the reform principles of 
transparency, consistency and integrity and seeks to encourage diversity in elected representatives.    

• Facilitated the 2018-19 capacity building program covering provision of resources and delivery of  
training including:

 – statewide face to face information sessions to 76 councils to support the implementation of the new  
legislation and improve understanding of integrity issues and importance of building community confidence  
in local government

 – best practice community engagement guidelines for councils with a focus on budget and service levels

 – monitoring budget and rates resolution toolkit

 – delivery of training packages for councils presented by content experts to underpin and build core skills in and 
improve understanding of financial management and governance

 – sponsorship of 45 female councillors and council officers to undertake professional development programs as 
part of the department’s Women in Local Government Strategy.

• Commenced the design of a Local Government Performance and Reporting Framework to identify issues and 
potential problems to be addressed through regional facilitation and a range of capability and capacity building 
programs particularly aimed at the needs of remote and less well-resourced councils.

• Managed the Local Government Grants Review project resulting in the design and development of a practical and 
efficient Grants to Local Government Model.   

PERFORMANCE

Percentage of local governments:

 with aligned financial documents - 97%
 with current asset management plans - 87%
 participating in training programs - 99%
  level of satisfaction of local governments (Mayors and CEOs) with the effectiveness, timeliness and quality of 

advice, services and support provided by the department - 90% 
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OBJECTIVE

A sustainable racing industry in Queensland

To support Queensland’s racing industry the department has administered the Racing Act 2002, provided policy 
advice to government on matters relevant to the commercial operation and viability of the industry and worked with 
stakeholders to promote racing across Queensland and oversee the rollout of the country racing package. 

                      KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

• A $26 million increase in prize money for Queensland thoroughbred TAB racing and an additional $12 million over 
three years for greyhound and harness racing.

• Facilitated the Racing Industry Forum and developed important racing industry reform initiatives to improve all 
aspects of city and country racing across Queensland. 

• Worked in collaboration with racing industry stakeholders to ensure the delivery of key racing 
infrastructure projects.

• Finalised appointment of the new Racing Queensland Board members including five continuing members and two 
new appointments. 

• Reviewed governance mechanisms for the Racing Infrastructure Fund and developed new guidelines to support the 
delivery of priority infrastructure.

PERFORMANCE

 Initiatives undertaken that support the Queensland racing industry include:
•  significant progress made in setting and implementing the racing industry reform agenda 
• policies to support and improve racing industry sustainability developed and implemented. 
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OBJECTIVE

Policies, programs and services responsive to Queensland’s cultural diversity 

The Multicultural Recognition Act 2016 underpins the Queensland Government’s support for multiculturalism.  
The Act promotes Queensland as a united, harmonious and inclusive community and acknowledges that a diverse, 
dynamic and cohesive society will deliver benefits for all Queenslanders, including the community, government  
and business sectors. 

            KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

• Recruited and inducted 21 new organisations to the Multicultural Queensland Ambassador Program, bringing the 
total number to 101 Ambassador organisations. 

• Developed and delivered a Multicultural Queensland Charter Speaker Series forum, attended by over 150 
government and non-government stakeholders who learnt about the Charter and how to bring it to life in practical 
ways within their organisations. 

• Supported the work of the Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council including the Council’s collaboration 
with other government agencies to promote initiatives which address the needs of people from culturally and 
linguistically diverse backgrounds.

• Recruited for a new 11-member Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council whose term will commence on  
1 August 2019 after 113 nominations were assessed by an independent selection panel.  

• Developed and commenced implementation of the new Multicultural Affairs engagement strategy which will 
underpin a strategic and sustainable approach to the Queensland Government’s vision of an inclusive, harmonious 
and united Queensland. 

• Engaged extensively across the Queensland Government to lead the development of the Queensland  
Multicultural Action Plan 2019-22 and prepare the First Progress Report on the Queensland Multicultural Policy 
and Action Plan 2016-19.  

• Provided $1.78 million funding to Communify Queensland to lead delivery of the Asylum Seeker and Refugee 
Assistance program to provide practical support to vulnerable asylum seekers and temporary protection 
visa holders.

• Continued to provide $2.3 million to 19 organisations through the Community Action for a Multicultural Society 
Program, which delivered over 80 activities across the state focused on improving social connectedness and 
intercultural connections in local communities.

• Supported the Multicultural Peak Funding for Sector Development Services initiative (through the Ethnic 
Communities Council of Queensland) to engage culturally diverse organisations in sector development activities, 
with a focus on small and emerging ethnic community groups.

• Worked actively with the Commonwealth Government to advocate the state’s interest in and influence policy and 
program delivery in ensuring sustainable and successful settlement of migrants and refugees in Queensland.

PERFORMANCE

  Percentage of government agencies with policies and programs that support the principles of the Multicultural 
Queensland Charter – 17%.

  A limited number of agencies listed specific actions which required public reporting. Under the 2019-22 Action Plan, all agencies have committed 
to undertake actions and report annually.

  Working across the Queensland Government to improve performance by gaining a commitment from all agencies to 
promote the Multicultural Queensland Charter under the Multicultural Action Plan 2019-22.
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OBJECTIVE

Efficient and effective funding programs promoting vibrant communities

To deliver efficient and effective funding outcomes, the department has designed and delivered programs and 
investment that create jobs and economic growth, support community well-being, enhance sustainability and 
celebrate cultural diversity. 

The department administers and manages a diverse range of funding and grants programs that underpin delivery of 
local government services and infrastructure projects, promote strong culturally diverse and connected communities 
and support refugees and vulnerable people seeking asylum. Further, the department is implementing the outcomes 
of the Local Government Grants Review.

                       KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

• The development of a new Grants to Local Government Model will introduce a more streamlined approach to how 
grants are managed and reported. The new model and implementation plan is currently being finalised and has been 
informed by feedback from local councils and industry stakeholders.

• Local Government Grants and Subsidies Program – as part of the two-year 2017-19 program, $60.9 million has been 
approved to support local governments to deliver key infrastructure projects that support economic growth, increase 
job creation for local communities and assist Queensland communities to be more resilient to natural disasters. 

• Works for Queensland Program – the Queensland Government under the 2017–19 program has enabled the delivery of 
505 completed projects as at 30 June 2019. 

• State Government Financial Aid – $34.5 million was allocated as part of the recurrent allocation-based program that 
provides a financial contribution (in lieu of rates) to assist 16 Indigenous councils.

• Indigenous Councils Critical Infrastructure Program – $41.5 million of the 2017-21 $120 million program has been paid 
to support Indigenous councils to implement projects and infrastructure related to critical water, wastewater and solid 
waste assets.

• Show Societies Grants Program – $2.1 million was provided to the state’s show societies to assist with operating 
expenses and the costs associated with maintenance of showground assets for the conduct of annual agricultural 
shows across Queensland. 

• Provided funding of $12 million over two years to Torres Shire Council to improve the safety and quality of drinking 
water on Horn, Thursday and Hammond Islands in the Torres Strait. 

• Administered the $70.4 million four-year country racing package and the $2 million Training Track Subsidy Scheme.
• Released $26 million in funding to Racing Queensland, to increase thoroughbred TAB prize money.
• Provided $3.7 million to support remediation of the Eagle Farm racecourse – the state’s premier racing venue.
• Approved $3.6 million over two years commencing in 2018-19 to help address service gaps identified for refugees and 

asylum seekers.
• Allocated $4.5 million in 2018-19 for special programs and community initiatives to promote inclusion and belonging 

across Queensland including Celebrating Multicultural Queensland program, Community Action for a Multicultural 
Society program, partnered with Welcoming Cities to support local councils to strengthen welcome and belonging 
and Multicultural Peak Funding for Sector Development Services initiative (through the Ethnic Communities Council 
of Queensland).

PERFORMANCE

  Cost of administering funding programs as a percentage of funding provided – 0.27%
  16,400 jobs have been created or supported since the commencement of the Works for Queensland program
  More than 300 refugees and people seeking asylum have received material and financial aid including families 

with children through the Asylum Seeker and Refugee Assistance program
  Under the Community Action for a Multicultural Society program, the reported number of service users with 

improved social connectedness for July 2018 to December 2018 was 10,596.
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OBJECTIVE

Agile, capable, collaborative and inclusive workforce 

An agile and inclusive workforce has been achieved by: 

• using resources efficiently and effectively to manage risk and deliver value for money outcomes
• harnessing knowledge and connectedness across the department with a focus on strong regional engagement
• promoting increasing workforce capability and a healthy and inclusive workforce 
• embracing a digital mindset and a culture of innovation
• engaging with internal and external stakeholders to develop solutions, promote best practice and  

foster collaboration.

            KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

Internally the department:

• held quarterly all-staff forums where invited guests addressed staff on a variety of topics, building knowledge, 
stimulating discussion and promoting innovative approaches to workplace practice

• held fortnightly executive leadership team meetings with external involvement 
• invested in the capability and leadership skills of current and future leaders with a cohort of managers  

completing the Lead4Qld program and offered targeted professional development on risk management and 
performance conversations

• continued a strong focus on employee performance by promoting and embedding the online performance and 
development framework. The new framework enables a direct line of sight between an individual’s performance 
measures and the strategic objectives of the department and focuses on competency development

• enabled engagement for all new employees with senior executives through face to face induction workshops
• improved the health and wellbeing of employees through flu vaccinations, skin checks, monthly wellness 

webinars, mental health awareness and resilience development. The program also included financial wellbeing 
with a focus on women and planning for retirement

• continued to build knowledge and improve awareness and capability of diversity and inclusion through numerous 
activities and promotions throughout the year including NAIDOC week, SBS cultural competence program and anti-
discrimination training

• achieved White Ribbon accreditation and strengthened its’ workplace culture to reflect a zero tolerance to 
domestic and family violence and respond to violence against women

• developed the Capability Blueprint to identify strengths and opportunities across the department and to inform 
future strategic planning.

External liaison and consultation have been important aspects of the work of the department and has seen positive 
outcomes through a strong emphasis on cross-government and industry collaborations. 
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In 2018-19, the department gained commitments from across government to: 

• increase cultural understanding and capability of staff and participate in the Racism. It stops with me campaign 
• provide pathways to employment in the Queensland Public Sector for migrants, refugees and people seeking 

asylum through the second Multicultural Action Plan 2019-22
• design and develop a Grants to Local Government Model.

The department worked collaboratively with industry and external stakeholders to:

• progress important racing industry reform initiatives and deliver key racing infrastructure projects
• implement the government’s response to the Crime and Corruption Commission’s report Operation Belcarra:  

A blueprint for integrity and addressing corruption risk in local government
• address the needs and aspirations of Queensland’s culturally diverse communities.

PERFORMANCE

  The average positive response rate for all indices for the 2018 survey was 63%.Comparisons with the 2017 
Working for Queensland survey are not available due to major changes to the department’s composition following 
machinery of government changes. The results from the 2018 survey will be used to determine the base level for 
comparisons for future years. 

  The department has improved its position in relation to the participation of people from a non-English speaking 
background and people with a disability in its workforce. The department now exceeds the government’s target 
representation in both women in senior officer roles and people from a non-English speaking background.  
Women occupy over 75% of senior officer roles in the department.

Comparative workforce data 2017-18 – 2018-19 
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Service Performance

Local Government

Service area objective
Provide high quality and timely administration of both the local government system and local government 
funding programs.

Service area description
In achieving its objective, the service area:

• administers the Local Government Act 2009, the City of Brisbane Act 2010, the Local Government Electoral Act 2011 and 
the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island Communities (Justice, Land and Other Matters) Act 1984 (Part 9, Division 2 and 
Part 10), providing a strategic policy and legislative framework for local government in Queensland  

• administers local government funding programs, including the assessment and evaluation of funding submissions, 
supporting councils to deliver vital services and essential infrastructure in their communities

• develops and delivers targeted and high-quality capacity building resources, training and solutions for councils to 
underpin strong and responsive local government for Queensland

• assists local governments to identify opportunities for inter-council collaboration to build capacity and 
create efficiencies

• supports local governments to build their integrity, governance and financial sustainability 
• administers the councillor conduct complaints system in accordance with legislation. 

Services
• Administration of the local government system 
• Administration of funding programs

Service area highlights 
In 2018-19 the service area:

• extended the Works for Queensland program, supporting job creation and infrastructure investment across 
regional Queensland 

• worked with stakeholders to respond to and implement recommendations from the Review of Grants to Local 
Governments: Current and Future State Assessments with the aim of delivering improved efficiency in funding 
program administration  

• appointed an Independent Assessor and established the Office of the Independent Assessor to manage the local 
government councillor complaints process enhancing the integrity of the local government system and improving 
governance practices

• implemented a mandatory code of conduct for local governments
• worked with key stakeholders to implement the recommendations from the Crime and Corruption Commission report 

Operation Belcarra: A blueprint for integrity and addressing corruption risk in local government
• developed and delivered training both face to face and online to underline the importance of local government 

integrity, governance and sustainability
• negotiated sponsorships with the Local Government Association of Queensland, Local Government Managers 

Australia (Queensland), Australian Local Government Women’s Association Queensland and Local Government 
Finance Professionals Queensland. Sponsoring these industry associations supports the growth and development of 
a strong local government sector. 
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Department of Local Government,  
Racing and Multicultural Affairs Notes 2018–19 

Target/Est.
2018–19 

Actual Result

Service area: Local Government

Service: Administration of the local government system

Service standards
Effectiveness measure
Level of satisfaction of local governments  
(Mayors and CEOs) with the effectiveness, 
timeliness and quality of advice, services and 
support provided by the department

1 85% 90%

Efficiency measure
Average cost of administering and managing  
the councillor conduct complaints process per  
local government

2 $12,600 $7,500

Cost of capacity building per local government 3 $22,100 $26,900

Service: Administration of funding programs

Service standards
Effectiveness measure
Level of satisfaction of local governments  
(Mayors and CEOs) with the administration of  
local government funding programs

85% 89%

Efficiency measure
Administration costs as a percentage of all  
funding distributed

<0.65% 0.29%

 Achieved or exceeded target                 Result is below target

Notes:
1. This service standard measures the overall level of stakeholder satisfaction with all dimensions of the service. 
2. This service standard has been discontinued in 2019-20 as the councillor complaints management and administration functions transitioned 

from the department to the Office of the Independent Assessor on 3 December 2018. The 2018-19 Actual is lower than the target estimate as it 
reflects services performed by the department for the period 1 July to 2 December 2018 after which the services were provided by the Office of the 
Independent Assessor.

3. Costs include capital and labour costs involved in developing resources and publications and in delivering training programs that focus on 
building the capacity of councils to undertake their roles and responsibilities, averaged across the 77 local governments. The variance between 
the 2018-19 Target/Estimate and the 2018-19 Actual is due to additional training and support provided as part of the local government rolling 
reform agenda and the implementation of recommendations from the Crime and Corruption Commission’s report Operation Belcarra: A blueprint 
for integrity and addressing corruption risk in local government. This additional support will continue into 2019-20.
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Racing

Service area objective
Administer the Racing Act 2002 and manage programs that support a viable, prosperous racing industry in Queensland.

Service area description
The service area provides policy advice to government on matters relevant to the commercial operation and viability of 
the racing industry.

Service area highlights 
In 2018-19 the service area: 

• supported racing in regional communities with additional funding for country race clubs across Queensland as part 
of a $70.4 million four-year country racing package  

• worked closely with Racing Queensland and other stakeholders both externally and across government to create and 
maintain a sustainable racing industry

• supported racing infrastructure development through administration of the Racing Infrastructure Fund.

Department of Local Government,  
Racing and Multicultural Affairs Notes 2018–19 

Target/Est.
2018–19 

Actual Result

Service area: Racing

Service standards
Effectiveness measure
Percentage of country race meetings in the 
approved schedule that are conducted

1 95% 95%

Efficiency measure
Grant monies paid as a percentage of the total non-
capital grant budget

2 100% 100%

 Achieved or exceeded target                Result is below target

Notes:
1. The Country Race Package supports the continued provision of country race meetings. Under the grant deed, Racing Queensland provides the 

department with a race meeting schedule by 30 April for the upcoming financial year. This measure reports on the proportion of scheduled 
meetings that proceed. A small number of meetings may be cancelled each year due to the weather or unforeseen problems. This service 
standard measures the effectiveness of the department in supporting country racing through funding prize money to enable events to be held 
across the state.

2. This service standard will be discontinued in 2019-20 as it does not meet the definition for an efficiency measure outlined in the Queensland 
Government Performance Management Framework. It will not be reported on elsewhere. It has been replaced with a new efficiency service 
standard commencing in the 2019-20 Service Delivery Statement - Average cost per hour of policy advice and support.
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Multicultural Affairs
Service area objective
To promote Queensland as a unified, harmonious and inclusive community.

Service area description
The service area:

• leads strategies to improve access and opportunities for people from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds
• invests in community events that celebrate and promote Queensland’s multicultural identity, increase community 

awareness of benefits of multiculturalism, foster community cohesion and support equal access to opportunities by 
people from diverse cultural backgrounds

• invests in projects that build community relationships to foster inclusion and participation of migrants and refugees in 
a range of activities

• invests in programs that facilitate social connectedness for culturally and linguistically diverse individuals and groups.

Service area highlights 
In 2018-19 the service area: 

• supported programs that promote intercultural connections and celebrate Queensland’s multiculturalism including 
the Community Action for a Multicultural Society Program and the Celebrating Multicultural Queensland Program

• led policy and initiatives which supported the principles of the Multicultural Queensland Charter including the 
Multicultural Queensland Ambassador Program and the Multicultural Queensland Charter Speaker series

• supported refugees and asylum seekers through community coordination of financial and material assistance
• led strategies to strengthen welcome and inclusion in local councils through partnering with Welcoming Cities
• finalised and implemented the Multicultural Affairs engagement strategy.

Department of Local Government, Racing and 
Multicultural Affairs Notes 2018–19 

Target/Est.
2018–19 

Actual Result

Service area: Multicultural Affairs 

Service standards
Effectiveness measure
Number of people attending events funded by 
Multicultural Affairs 

1 1 million 1.1 million

Efficiency measure 2

 Achieved or exceeded target                Result is below target

Notes:
1. The attendance count at funded events is a proxy effectiveness measure for this service area. Attendance at events is estimated through 

funding proposals and acquittal reports submitted by organisations funded under the Celebrating Multicultural Queensland Program. A new 
effectiveness measure based on a client engagement survey is currently being considered for the 2020-21 Service Delivery Statement for this 
service area.

2. A new efficiency measure – Average cost per hour of policy advice and support – has been included in the 2019-20 Service Delivery Statement for 
this service area. 

Annual Report 2018–19 30



Our financial performance

Statement by the Chief 
Finance Officer
In accordance with requirements of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009, the Chief Finance Officer has 
provided the Director-General with a statement confirming 
the financial internal controls of the department are 
operating efficiently, effectively and economically 
in conformance with section 57 of the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009. 

The Chief Finance Officer has fulfilled the responsibilities 
as required by the Financial Accountability Act 2009.

Table 1: Financial snapshot 2019 2018

$’000 $’000

Total income 411,609 510,817

Total expenses 419,407 547,027

Operating result from continuing operations (before tax) (7,797) (36,209)

Income tax equivalent (expense)/benefit   - 8,612

Operating result from continuing operations (after tax) (7,797) (27,598)

Other comprehensive income

Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation reserve 4,389 4,194

Total comprehensive income (3,408) (23,405)

Total assets 133,493 111,228

Total liabilities 62,071 36,277

Net assets(liabilities) 71,422 74,951

Source: Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs

Summary of financial 
performance
The financial summary provides an overview of the 
financial statements of the department for the year ended 
30 June 2019, which are provided in detail in the ‘Financial 
statements’ section of this report. 
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Our income – where 
the funds come from
Income for the department totalled 
$411.6 million for 2018–19. 
This represents a decrease of  
$99.2 million on the prior financial 
year mainly due to the machinery 
of government changes associated 
with becoming the new department 
of Local Government, Racing and 
Multicultural Affairs, previously 
Department of Infrastructure, 
Local Government and Planning. 
This involved the transferring out 
of the planning and infrastructure 
functions and transferring in of 
the racing and multicultural affairs 
functions resulting in a net reduction 
of revenue. This decrease in income 
is partially offset by the racing 
and multicultural affairs functions 
transferring into the department and 
the increased payments under the 
Racing Infrastructure Fund to  
Racing Queensland.

Appropriation revenue is the main 
source of income for the department  
at $409.8 million (99.7%). 

Our expenses –  
how funds are spent
Expenses from continuing  
operations for the department 
totalled $419 million for 2018–19, 
a decrease of $127.6 million on the 
prior financial year, mainly due to the 
machinery of government changes. 
The current year balance includes a 
full year of transactions for the racing 
and multicultural affairs functions 
that became part of the department  
in 2018–19.

Grants and subsidies are the 
department’s major expense category 
at $321.6 million (77%), with the 
deferred appropriation payable 
(expense) to Consolidated Fund 
comprising $57.2 million (14%), 
followed by employee expenses 
which comprise $24 million (6%).

Figure 1 – Income by category for year ended 30 June 2019

User charges and 
fees 0.03%

Interest 0.20%

Other revenue1 

0.08%

Appropriation 
revenue 99.69%

Other expenses2 
2%

Deferred 
appropriation 
payable (expense) 
to Consolidated 
Fund 14%

Employee 
expenses 6%

Supplies and 
services 3%

Grants and 
subsidies 77%

Figure 2 – Expense by major category for year ended 30 June 2019

1.  Other revenue comprises the following financial statement line items: grants and other 
contributions, gains on disposal/remeasurement of assets, other revenue.

2.  Other expenses comprises the following financial statement line items: Depreciation and 
amortisation, impairment losses, finance/borrowing costs, other expenses
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Non-current 
receivables 3%

Current 
receivables3 2%

Property, plant and 
equipment 44%

Cash and cash 
equivalents 51%

Our assets  
– what we own
As at 30 June 2019, the department 
held assets totaling $133.5 million, 
with $68.1 million (51%) held as cash 
and cash equivalents and property, 
plant and equipment accounted for 
$59 million (44%).

Our liabilities –  
what we owe
As at 30 June 2019, the department 
held liabilities totaling $62 million 
with $60.8 million (98%) relating 
to current payables which includes 
$57.2 million appropriation payable 
to Queensland Treasury for cash 
received for budgeted expenses that 
were unspent at 30 June 2019.

Figure 3 – Assets by category for year ended 30 June 2019

3.  Current receivables comprises the following financial statement line items: current receivables  
and other current assets.

33Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs 



Governance

The department operates in an ethical, transparent and 
accountable manner and supports the Director-General 
to deliver high-quality, value-for-money outcomes for 
Queenslanders. Sound governance supports and guides 
departmental staff in the actions they take and the 
decisions they make every day to achieve the government’s 
objectives. The department delivers its services by:

• establishing strategy and direction including 
governance committees

• effective performance management and reporting that 
supports our strategic direction

• effective compliance and accountability that underpins 
our services

• developing capable people who deliver services in an 
ethical and accountable way.

The department’s service delivery, decision-making, 
and organisational management are governed by its 
commitment to the Queensland public service values.
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Governance Framework 
Accountability for responsible governance is articulated in the department’s governance framework.

Corporate Management Service Delivery

Executive Council
(Administrative Arrangements)

Cabinet
(Objectives/WOG policy/requirements)

Parliament
(Legislative and Regulatory requirements)

Minister
(Acts administered, Ministerial Charter)

Strategy, Governance 
and Engagement 

Division

Local Government  
Division

Finance
Information 

Steering 
Committee

Audit 
and Risk 

Management

Work Health 
and Safety

Consultative 
Committee

Director-General
(Departmental functions)

Governance Committees
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Executive Leadership Team
The Executive Leadership Team supports the Director-General in discharging his responsibilities as the department’s 
accountable officer. The Executive Leadership Team provides leadership, direction and guidance to the department and 
focuses on strategic planning, policy setting, risk and issues management, resource allocation and financial performance 
management and reporting, ensuring the department is responsive to changing community and business needs and 
government priorities. The Executive Leadership Team meets fortnightly.

Warwick Agnew 
Director-General
Warwick is responsible for 
providing values-based 
leadership and management 
to ensure the department 
is responsive to community 
and business needs and 
government priorities.

Natalie Wilde 
Deputy Director-General 
Local Government Division
Natalie is responsible for 
leading the development and 
implementation of strategies, 
policies and programs that 
support a sustainable local 
government sector.

Kathy Parton
Deputy Director-General, 
Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement Division 
(1 July 2018 to  
10 February 2019) 

Chantal Llora, 
Acting Deputy Director-
General, Strategy, Governance 
and Engagement Division 
(25 February 2019 to  
30 June 2019) 

The position has responsibility for 
delivering responsive and robust 
governance and engagement 
strategies to the department, and 
oversight of the multicultural affairs 
and racing policy functions.
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Wayne Briscoe 
Executive Director, Multicultural 
Affairs and Engagement, 
Strategy, Governance and  
Engagement Division 
Wayne is responsible for 
promoting Queensland as a 
united, harmonious and  
inclusive community and for 
managing the communication, 
engagement and media  
functions of the department.

John Clifton
Chief Finance Officer,  
Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement Division 
John is responsible for providing 
strategic leadership and direction 
for the efficient, effective and 
economic financial administration 
of the department.

Bronwyn Blagoev
Executive Director, Strategy 
and Service Delivery, Local 
Government Division
Bronwyn is responsible for 
maintaining appropriate 
statutory and policy frameworks, 
developing local government 
strategy and policy and for 
promoting the sustainability, 
integrity, capacity and 
performance of local government 
through a network of regional 
advisors.

Stephen Robbins
Executive Director, Finance, 
Performance and Programs,  
Local Government Division
Stephen is responsible for 
leading the development 
and administration of local 
government grants programs, 
including the monitoring of 
council financial performance  
and the development and 
delivery of governance and 
capability programs.

Paul Carlson
Executive Director, Corporate, 
Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement Division 
Paul is responsible for 
providing strategic advice, 
legal services, human 
resources, service delivery 
and contract management of 
people, procedures, corporate 
reporting and planning, 
service level agreements  
and change.

Kim Mahoney
Executive Director,  
Grants Review, Local 
Government Division 
Kim is responsible for leading 
the implementation planning 
phase of the review of state 
government grants provided 
to local governments and for 
delivering the new Grants to 
Local Government Model. 

Sarah Charlwood
Acting Executive Director, 
Racing Policy, Strategy, 
Governance and  
Engagement Division 
Sarah has responsibility for 
the administration of the 
Racing Act 2002 and the 
provision of policy advice to 
the government relating to 
the long-term sustainability 
of the racing industry in 
Queensland. 
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Governance committees
Committee Membership Role 

Information 
Steering 
Committee

• Deputy Director-General, Strategy, 
Governance and Engagement  
Division (Chair)

• Deputy Director-General, Local 
Government Division

• Executive Director, Multicultural Affairs 
and Engagement

• Executive Director, Corporate
• Chief Finance Officer
• Chief Information Officer, Department 

of State Development, Manufacturing, 
Infrastructure and Planning

• Director, Media and Communication 
Services

The Information Steering Committee provides 
strategic management of information and 
technology resources to ensure that new 
investments support the department’s strategic 
plan, and security oversight.

Finance 
Committee

• Director-General (Chair)
• Deputy Director-General, Strategy, 

Governance and Engagement Division
• Deputy Director-General, Local 

Government Division
• Chief Finance Officer
• Executive Director, Multicultural Affairs 

and Engagement

The Finance Committee is established pursuant to 
the requirements of the Financial Accountability 
Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2019 to assist the Director-
General in the management of the department’s 
finances. It provides ongoing assurance in the areas 
of financial administration and reporting, legislative 
compliance and internal controls.

Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee

• Deputy Director-General, Strategy, 
Governance and Engagement Division

• Deputy Director-General, Local 
Government Division

• 2 external members (including the 
Committee Chair)

The Audit and Risk Management Committee  
consists of a minimum of three and a maximum of 
six people appointed by the Director-General.  
The committee provides independent assurance and 
advice to the Director-General on the risks, control 
and compliance frameworks of the department 
and external accountability responsibilities as 
prescribed in legislation and standards. 

Work Health 
and Safety 
Committee

The Work Health and Safety Committee is 
established in accordance with the Work 
Health and Safety Act 2011. 

The Work Health and Safety Committee is 
established to:  

• identify risks and solutions and make 
recommendations on work health and safety

• assist in developing standards, policies, 
procedures and training programs

• promote best practice and continuous 
improvement approaches

• facilitate cooperation between the Director-
General and employees regarding health and 
safety issues through an agreed action plan.
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Committee Membership Role 

Consultative 
Committee

The parties to the Consultative Committee 
are the Department of Local Government, 
Racing and Multicultural Affairs and the 
Together Queensland Industrial Union  
of Employees.

The committee is the consultative body for the 
union and management created pursuant to 
Part 9 of the State Government Entities Certified 
Agreement 2015 and provides a forum for a 
collaborative approach to employee relations in the 
department. The committee meets on a quarterly 
basis and considers:

• workload management
• organisational change and restructuring
• training
• union encouragement
• work-life blend
• organisational matters including workforce 

management policies.

Boards and committees
Local Government Grants Commission

Title Description

Act or instrument Sections 228–233 of the Local Government Act 2009; Sections 308–311 Local Government 
Regulation 2012

Functions The Local Government Grants Commission provides recommendations to the Minister responsible 
for local government in Queensland on the distribution of the Commonwealth Government’s 
Financial Assistance Grant to all local governing bodies within the state. This must be done in 
accordance with the requirements of the Commonwealth Local Government (Financial Assistance) 
Act 1995 and the National Principles prescribed under the Act.

Achievements During 2018–19, the Local Government Grants Commission: 

• paid the allocation of the 2018–19 Financial Assistance Grant and agreed on the estimated 
2019–20 Financial Assistance Grant

• held six ordinary meetings of the Commission and one induction for the new Commission
• undertook 13 visits to councils to explain how the Financial Assistance Grant is allocated and 

to allow councils to discuss any unique circumstances
• attended the Local Government Association of Queensland Annual Conference, during which 

12 deputations were held with councils to discuss their individual circumstances and issues.

Financial 
reporting

Under the Commonwealth Local Government (Financial Assistance) Act 1995 section 15(b), 
the State Treasurer must provide the Commonwealth Minister with a schedule of Financial 
Assistance Grant payments (amounts and dates) that has been certified by the State Auditor-
General. This is to be provided as soon as practicable after 30 June each year. Funding for the 
operations of the Commission, including secretariat staff, is provided by the department.
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Remuneration

Position Name Meetings/sessions 
attendance

Approved 
annual, 

sessional or 
daily fee

Approved sub- 
committee 

fees if 
applicable

Actual 
fees 

received

Chair Cr Paul Bell AM1 2 (2 meetings,
0 council visits)

$10,000 pa N/A $0

Deputy Chair Natalie Wilde² 2 (2 meetings,
0 council visits)

No remuneration N/A $0

Member Janelle Menzies3 9 (7 meetings,
1 council visit
1 Local Government 
Association of 
Queensland conference)

No remuneration N/A $0

Member Deirdre 
Comerford4

2 (2 meetings,
0 council visits)

$6,000 pa N/A $0

Member Cr Leslie Walker4 1 (1 meeting,
0 council visits)

$6,000 pa N/A $0

Member Jo Sheppard4 2 (2 meetings,
0 council visits)

$6,000 pa N/A $0

Previous Member Brendan 
McNamara5

19 (5 meetings,
13 council visits,
1 Local Government
Association of 
Queensland
conference)

$6,000 pa N/A $6,000

Previous Member Donna Stewart5 18 (5 meetings,
12 council visits,
1 Local Government
Association of 
Queensland
conference)

$6,000 pa N/A $6,000

Previous Member Ann Bunnell5 18 (5 meetings,
12 council visits,
1 Local Government
Association of 
Queensland
conference)

$6,000 pa N/A $6,000

No. scheduled meetings/sessions 21

Total out of pocket expenses $11,960

Notes:
1. Cr Paul Bell AM commenced as Chair on 24 March 2019.
2. Natalie Wilde commenced as Deputy Chair on 24 March 2019. Natalie did not receive remuneration as she was a public sector employee.
3. Janelle Menzies was reappointed as a member on 24 March 2019. Janelle did not receive remuneration as she was a public sector employee.
4. Deirdre Comerford, Cr Leslie Walker and Jo Sheppard commenced as new members on 24 March 2019.
5. Brendan McNamara, Donna Stewart and Ann Bunnell memberships ceased on 23 March 2019.
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Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal1

Title Description

Act or instrument Local Government Act 2009

Functions The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal is responsible for:

• hearing and deciding the most serious complaints of misconduct by a councillor
• establishing the categories of local governments
• deciding which category each local government belongs to
• deciding the remuneration that is payable to councillors in each of the categories
• any other functions that the Minister directs the tribunal to perform.

Achievements The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal:

• was referred 20 complaints of misconduct (during the period 1 July 2018 and  
30 November 2018)

• had two matters not finalised as at 3 December 2018 which returned to the department
• considered three requests for exceptional circumstance submissions – Hope Vale Aboriginal 

Shire Council, Ipswich City Council and Doomadgee Aboriginal Shire Council
• attended the Local Government Association of Queensland Annual Conference in October 2018 

and received one delegation and one submission to inform the 2018 remuneration  
review program

• had its 2018 remuneration determination gazetted in December 2018
• ceased operating on 3 December 2018.

Financial 
reporting

Transactions of the Tribunal are accounted for in the financial statements of the department.

Remuneration

Position Name Meetings/
sessions 

attendance

Approved annual, 
sessional or  

daily fee

Approved sub- 
committee fees  

if applicable

Actual 
fees 

received

Chair Susan Johnson 282 $520 daily fee N/A $30,835

Member John Boyd 282 $400 daily fee N/A $25,700

Member Rodney Metcalfe 282 $400 daily fee N/A $27,700

No. scheduled meetings/sessions 282

Total out of pocket expenses $77

Notes:
1. The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal ceased operations on 3 December 2018 and was replaced by two bodies - the 

Councillor Conduct Tribunal and the Local Government Remuneration Commission.  Details of functions, achievements, membership and 
remuneration of the Councillor Conduct Tribunal is reported below.  As at 30 June 2019 no casual commissioners had been appointed to the new 
remuneration commission.

2. Number of meetings or sessions scheduled or attended include adhoc teleconferences and face to face meetings and hearings between the Chair 
and members.
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Councillor Conduct Tribunal1

Title Description

Act or instrument Local Government Act 2009

Functions The functions of the Tribunal are to:

• hear and decide complaints of misconduct by councillors as referred by the Office of the 
Independent Assessor

• investigate the suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor referred to the local 
government, by the assessor and to be dealt with by the local government

•  make recommendations to the local government about dealing with the conduct.

Achievements • The Tribunal established its operating procedures including the development of eight internal 
operating guidelines, two practice directions and associated documents and materials.

•  In the period 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019, 16 misconduct matters were referred to the 
Councillor Conduct Tribunal, eight of which were finalised.  Eight inappropriate conduct 
matters were referred to the Tribunal with four of those matters finalised by 30 June 2019.

Financial 
reporting

Transactions of the Tribunal are accounted for in the financial statements of the department.

Remuneration

Position Name Meetings/
sessions 

attendance2

Approved annual, 
sessional or daily fee

Approved sub- 
committee 

fees if 
applicable

Actual 
fees 

received

President John Boyd 13 $325 daily fee N/A $41,9755

Member June Anstee 10 $250 daily fee N/A $8,2505

Member Susan Johnson 8 $250 daily fee N/A $9,2205

Member Rodney Metcalfe 10 $250 daily fee N/A $7,6005

Member Tamara O’Shea3 2 $250 daily fee N/A $500

Member Gail Hartridge 11 $250 daily fee N/A $9,8005

Member Christina Turner4 3 $250 daily fee N/A $750

No. scheduled meetings/sessions 13

Total out of pocket expenses $65

Notes:
1. The Councillor Conduct Tribunal commenced operation on the 3 December 2018. The President and members were appointed from  

1 November 2018.  
2. Number of meetings or sessions scheduled or attended includes meetings to establish operating procedures and guidelines, attendance at 

induction sessions and adhoc meetings between the President and members.
3. Tamara O’Shea resigned on 7 May 2019 to take up the position of Interim Administrator of Logan City Council.
4. Christina Turner resigned on 18 March 2019 to take up the role of Head of Human Resources at the Sunshine Coast University.
5. Costs directly associated with misconduct matters are recovered from the relevant local government. Actual fees paid to the President and 

members excludes any costs recovered.
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Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council

Title Description

Act or instrument Multicultural Recognition Act 2016

Functions The Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council advises the Minister for Multicultural Affairs on 
opportunities and barriers facing people from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds 
and how to promote the Multicultural Queensland Charter to support a unified, harmonious and 
inclusive community.

Achievements During 2018-19 the Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council:

• met with senior executives from the Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural 
Affairs, Department of Child Safety, Youth and Women, Department of Housing and Public 
Works and the Department of Employment, Small Business and Training to discuss those 
departments’ progress on actions in the Queensland Multicultural Action Plan

• met with various arts bodies to discuss representation of Queenslanders from culturally 
diverse backgrounds in the arts, as audiences and workforce

• met with Chairs and secretariats of Parliamentary Committees on how to engage with people 
from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds, which has led to more engagement with 
the department

• provided feedback for inclusion in the first Parliamentary Report on the progress of outcomes 
in the Queensland Multicultural Policy and advice regarding the development of a new 
Queensland Multicultural Action Plan 2019-22

• discussed opportunities for the 2019 multicultural month including changing the name to the 
Multicultural Queensland Month to better reflect that Queensland is a multicultural society.

Financial 
reporting

Transactions of the council are accounted for in the financial statements of the department.
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Remuneration

Position Name Meetings/
sessions 
attendance

Approved annual, 
sessional or daily fee

Approved sub- 
committee fees 
if applicable

Actual 
fees 
received

Chair The Honourable Stirling 
Hinchliffe MP1

6 N/A N/A N/A

Member Nora Amath 6 $300 daily N/A $1,200

Member Kerrin Benson2 4 N/A N/A N/A

Member Elijah Buol 5 $300 daily N/A $1,200

Member Gitie House 6 $300 daily N/A $1,200

Member Ali Kadri 3 $300 daily N/A $750

Member Joon-Yee Kwok 3 $300 daily N/A $750

Member Ataus Samad3 1 $300 daily N/A $150

Member Jason Steinberg 5 $300 daily N/A $900

Member Serge Voloschenko 6 $300 daily N/A $1,200

Member Tracy Watson 5 $300 daily N/A $1,050

Member Chammie Kamara4 2 $300 daily N/A $300

No. scheduled meetings/sessions 5 scheduled meetings5

Total out of pocket expenses $5,193.55

Notes:
1. The Honourable Stirling Hinchliffe MP did not receive remuneration as he was a Minister of the State. 
2. Kerrin Benson requested remuneration associated with membership of the Multicultural Queensland Advisory Council be waived.
3. Ataus Samad resigned from his position as a member of the Council on 9 August 2018.
4. Chammie Kamara was appointed to the position of member of the Council on 1 August 2018.
5. There were five scheduled Council meetings during 2018-19. On the direction of the Minister, some members also met with Chairs and 

secretariats of Parliamentary Committees in March 2019. These meetings are included in the meeting attendance column and members were 
remunerated for attending these meetings.

Annual Report 2018–19 44



Local Government Change Commission

Title Description

Act or instrument Local Government Act 2009

Annual report 
arrangements

Details of the Local Government Change Commission are reported in the Electoral Commission of 
Queensland’s Annual Report.

Racing Queensland Board 

Title Description

Act or instrument Racing Queensland Act 2002

Annual report 
arrangements

Details of the Racing Queensland Board are reported in Racing Queensland Board’s Annual Report.

Independent Assessor

Title Description

Act or instrument Local Government Act 2009

Annual report 
arrangements

Details of the Independent Assessor are reported in the Office of the Independent Assessor’s 
Annual Report.

Risk management
During 2018-19 the Department of Local Government, 
Racing and Multicultural Affairs continued to develop the 
maturity of its enterprise risk management framework, 
processes and systems. Risk management is integrated 
into strategic and operational planning and is incorporated 
into project and program management. 

The department continues to focus on improving its risk 
management practices and delivered a comprehensive 
risk training and education program for upper and middle 
management in October and November 2018. The program 
cemented the importance of an integrated approach and 
shared understanding of the risk management framework 
and of departmental priorities, risks and opportunities. 

Audit and Risk Management 
Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee was 
established pursuant to the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2019.

The objective of the committee is to provide independent 
assurance and advice to the Director-General on 
the department’s:

• risk management, control and compliance frameworks 
• external accountability responsibilities as prescribed 

in legislation and standards. 

The Audit and Risk Management Committee Charter 
establishes the authority and responsibilities of the 
committee and was prepared with reference to:

• relevant provisions of the Financial Accountability Act 
2009 and the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2019

• Queensland Treasury Audit Committee Guidelines—
Improving Accountability and Performance

• contemporary leading practice.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee met on four 
occasions during 2018–19.
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Membership of the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
and remuneration (where applicable) in 2018–19 included:

Current Members:

• Karen Smith-Pomeroy – Chair and external member 
(appointed Chair 8 October 2018, previously external 
member). Remuneration: $5,884 (GST exclusive)

• Ian Rodin – external member (appointed 8 October 
2018). Remuneration: $6,875 (GST exclusive)

• Chantal Llora, Acting Deputy Director-General, 
Strategy, Governance and Engagement (appointed 11 
March 2019)

• Natalie Wilde, Deputy Director-General, Local 
Government Division (appointed 8 October 2018).

Past Members:

• Eric Muir—Chair and external member. Remuneration: 
$1,870 (GST exclusive) (completion of tenure 12 
September 2018) 

• Kathy Parton, Deputy Director-General, Strategy, 
Governance and Engagement (resigned effective 10 
February 2019)

• Paul Carlson, Executive Director, Corporate (effective 
28 September 2018).

Key achievements for the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee during 2018–19 included:

• reviewing and endorsing the department’s annual 
report for the year ending 30 June 2019

• reviewing and endorsing the department’s financial 
statements for the year ending 30 June 2019

• reviewing and endorsing the department’s Internal 
Audit Strategic Plan 2019–22 and Annual Audit Plan 
2019–20

• endorsing the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
Charter and the Internal Audit Charter for 2019–20

• receiving regular reports on Internal Audit activities, 
including audits and reviews completed as part of the 
Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2018–19

• reviewing and considering the Queensland Audit Office 
Strategic Audit Plan and the Client Strategy for the 
department

• considering the scheduling, status, findings and audit 
recommendations of Queensland Audit Office financial 
and performance audits

• receiving regular reports on the implementation status 
of internal and external audit recommendations

• receiving regular reports on the department’s 
risk status

• enhancing management’s oversight of 
risk management.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee considers 
that it has observed the terms of its Charter and has had 
due regard to Queensland Treasury Audit Committee 
Guidelines: Improving Accountability and Performance.

Internal Audit
Pursuant to section 29 of the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2019, the department has 
established an independent Internal Audit function. 

Through its assurance activities, Internal Audit aids 
the accountable officer in the discharge of that officer’s 
functions and duties under the relevant provisions of 
the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2019. 

Internal Audit provides an independent, objective, 
assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve the department’s operations. The unit assists 
the department in accomplishing its objectives by bringing 
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes.

Internal Audit operates under an approved charter that 
sets the purpose, authority and responsibilities of the 
department’s internal audit function. It has been prepared 
with reference to: 

• the relevant provisions of the Act and the Standard
• the Institute of Internal Auditors International 

Professional Practice Framework 
• the Queensland Treasury Audit Committee Guidelines: 

Improving Accountability and Performance
• better practice guidance issued by the Australian 

National Audit Office.

The scope of Internal Audit coverage for 2018–19 was set 
out in the approved Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2018–21 
and Annual Audit Plan 2018–19. This plan followed a risk-
based methodology, balancing emerging issues against 
reviews of core business and transactional processes. 
Auditable areas were identified based on consultation and 
assurance mapping.

The Head of Internal Audit is Jo Buckley, CA, B.Com. 
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Achievements of Internal Audit during 2018–19 include:

• developing and delivering a risk-based strategic and 
annual plan of audits covering assurance about, and 
improving effectiveness of, governance, financial 
controls, systems, project management, operations, 
compliance and risk management

• providing advisory services to the department in order 
to improve risk management, control and governance, 
and business operations

• completing audits and reviews as detailed in the 
annual audit plan and as directed by the Director-
General resulting in recommendations for improving 
governance processes and business operations

• assessing the effectiveness and efficiency of key 
departmental financial and operating systems, 
reporting processes and activities

• proactively following-up with management regarding 
their timely implementation of internal and external 
audit recommendations

• managing a co-sourced service delivery model for the 
provision of an effective internal audit function.

External scrutiny
In addition to an annual audit of the department’s financial 
statements, the Auditor-General conducted performance 
audits and whole-of-government audits, in accordance 
with the Queensland Audit Office Strategic Audit Plan.

Queensland Audit Office audit reports tabled in the 
Legislative Assembly in 2018-19 directly applicable to the 
department included:

• Auditor-General’s Report 1: 2018–19, Monitoring  
and managing ICT projects—tabled in Parliament  
10 July 2018 

• Auditor-General’s Report 3:  
2018–19, Delivering shared corporate services in 
Queensland—tabled in Parliament 27 September 2018

• Auditor-General’s Report 14: 2018–19, Queensland 
state government: 2017–18 results of financial audits—
tabled in Parliament 28 February 2019

• Auditor-General’s Report 17: 2018-19, Managing 
consumer food safety in Queensland—tabled in 
Parliament 14 May 2019

• Auditor-General’s Report 18: 2018–19, Local 
government entities: 2017-18 results of financial 
audits—tabled in Parliament 15 May 2019.

Recommendations addressed to the department were 
accepted and management plans are in place to implement 
those recommendations. Progress in implementing all 
recommendations is monitored and followed-up by Internal 
Audit and reported to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee for review and noting.

Ethics 
Under the Public Sector Ethics Act 1994, the department’s 
Ethics and Integrity Framework ensures systems, 
policies, procedures and resources are in place to provide 
assurance that departmental activities are conducted in an 
ethical, accountable and transparent manner.

This framework is supported by a range of services 
provided by the department and the Department of State 
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning. 
The departments’ work in partnership with senior leaders 
across the department to support an ethical culture and 
right-sized governance.

Ethics provides a range of specialist services aimed at 
ensuring that the department’s ethics and governance 
requirements and standards remain central to the 
department’s operations. Advice and services are  
provided in relation to:

• complaints management
• registering declarations of interests and managing 

conflicts of interest
• gifts and benefits
• contacts with lobbyists
• preventing fraud and corruption
• training and development related to ethics and 

integrity
• liaising with the Crime and Corruption Commission, 

Queensland Police Service and the Queensland 
Ombudsman’s Office

• management of public interest disclosures and 
complaints related to corrupt conduct

• corporate policy coordination and review in relation to 
ethics and governance.

Departmental employees uphold the Code of Conduct for 
the Queensland Public Service and receive regular training 
on the code. Ethics forms a key part of induction sessions 
and training opportunities are also available online via the 
department’s intranet.
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Ethics has also provided tailored advice and information 
sessions to staff across the department on request.  
Much of the advice and training has been focused on 
ensuring staff have an improved understanding and 
appreciation of conflicts of interest, as well as fraud  
and corruption prevention.

Fraud and corruption risk assessment has been 
incorporated into the department’s risk management 
processes. A new Fraud and Corruption Prevention Plan for 
2018–20 was prepared in consultation with business areas 
and approved by the Director-General in September 2018.

The updated policies and complementary procedure 
documents ensure that corporate policies support 
requirements outlined in relevant legislation, as well as 
the ethical principles in the Public Sector Ethics Act 1994.

Complaints Management 
In 2018–19, two complaints were lodged against the 
department, both of which were resolved within set 
timeframes. Customer complaints received, resolved and 
under management are reported for the financial year on 
the department’s website www.dlgrma.qld.gov.au. 

Information systems and 
recordkeeping
The department is committed to information management 
and recordkeeping practices that are open, accountable, 
and transparent and contribute to sound business 
decision making and good processes. We strive towards 
best practice and continual improvement by supporting 
compliance with the Public Records Act 2002, Public 
Service Act 2008 and the whole-of-government records 
governance policy.

Our information management practices support the 
department’s goals for accountable, well managed 
community-focused local governments, engaged, cohesive 
and culturally diverse communities and a sustainable, 
vibrant racing industry. 

Departmental staff use an electronic document and records 
management system which is underpinned by relevant 
policies, procedures and awareness training modules. 
The effective use of the department’s electronic document 
and records management system enables the consistent 
capture, use and management of departmental information 
and records.

The department continues to manage records digitally 
where practicable. This is supported by electronic 
business and records management and storage resulting 
in a reduction of physical records and improved efficiency 
and productivity.  

The department also uses whole-of-government systems 
for finance and human resource management respectively.

Continual improvements to information security and 
associated security protocols have been a priority during 
2018–19 and key initiatives included:

• implementation of stage one of an information security 
management system compliant with ISO27001:2013 
as a governance framework for assessing information 
security and business systems risk

• incorporation of the information security management 
system risk framework as part of the departmental 
governance and risk frameworks

• improved methodologies for assessing business 
information risk.
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Strategic workforce planning  
and performance
The department continues to deliver on the 
implementation of the Strategic Workforce Plan 2019–24 
to achieve our strategic objective of creating an engaged 
and responsive workforce through:

• maintaining a culture of innovation and collaboration
• enhancing leadership capability
• supporting our workforce to be high performing, 

capable and culturally competent
• maintaining a proactive, integrated approach to health 

and wellbeing and a healthy work-life blend.

People in the department have pride, energy and 
enthusiasm for the work they do demonstrating high 
levels of intrinsic motivation. Employee feedback informs 
the departments’ strategic workforce planning and 
professional development programs. 

Sources of feedback include the annual Working for 
Queensland Employee Opinion Survey, the employee 
Consultative Committee and the “Ask the DG” intranet 
link. Results from the Working for Queensland survey 
reflected that the department has strength in respectful 
relationships among colleagues and a strong customer 
focus. It also indicated a need for increased opportunities 
for agency engagement, professional development, 
including performance conversations, and transparency.

Leadership skills continue to be a crucial component in 
the delivery of departmental services and in engaging our 
workforce with the organisation’s values, priorities and 
direction. The department participated in the Capability 
Blueprint program. As a recently formed department with a 
new vision and strategy, the Capability Blueprint provided 
an opportunity to develop a shared understanding of the 
strengths and opportunities available to the leadership 
team. Leadership development programs have been 
offered through the Public Service Commission, such as 
Lead4Qld, along with internal leadership opportunities.

The department has embedded an environment of learning 
through implementing opportunities for employees to 
regularly engage with online learning. These offerings 
ensure staff are aware of our strategic direction and 
legislative obligations and align with the Public Service 
Commission’s 10 year human capital outlook through 
developing future skills and portable capabilities required 
for increasing digitisation of tools within the workplace.

Our workforce 

During the 2018-19 year, the performance and development 
planning process was utilised to establish measures 
for staff performance and identify development needs. 
The department’s staff have been supported through 
development opportunities, enhancing their skills in 
performance conversations that set:

• performance expectations
• establish clear linkages to the department’s objectives
• allow two-way feedback
• identify individual development needs.  

The learning management system continues to support 
this process through electronic recording and tracking 
of agreements.

This year the department launched the SBS Cultural 
Competence Program, along with Anti-Discrimination and 
Unconscious Bias training, supporting our commitment 
to diversity in our communities and workplaces. 
The department also seeks to harness the varied skill 
sets and perspectives arising from our diverse workforce. 
This commitment underpins the 2018–21 Inclusion 
and Diversity Strategic Plan, that incorporates the 
department’s actions relating to:

• Disability Action Plan
• Cultural Capability Action Plan
• Multicultural Queensland Charter
• Multicultural Action Plan
• White Ribbon Operational Plan 
• Reconciliation Action Plan
• Youth Strategy
• LGBTIQ+ Strategy
• Gender Equity.

In addition, the department continually invests in the 
health and wellbeing of staff through the ‘Invigorate’ 
program that provides an integrated and proactive 
approach to health, safety and wellbeing and aligns with 
the Public Service Commission’s ‘Be healthy, be safe, be 
well’ framework. Initiatives over the 2018-19 year included 
flu vaccinations, Red25 awareness, skin checks, wellness 
seminars, rehabilitative case management and employee 
assistance program.    
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As informed by the Working for 
Queensland survey results, the 
department implements strategies to 
attract and retain talent by providing 
information to all new and existing 
staff on the following:

• creating an inclusive  
workplace policy

• parental leave arrangements
• domestic and family  

violence support
• provision of parenting facilities in 

the workplace
• options for designing flexibility 

into work arrangements including:
 – telecommuting arrangements

 – part-time hours and  
job sharing

 – compressed hours

 – flexible work hours. 

In May 2019, White Ribbon Australia 
accredited the department as part 
of their Workplace Accreditation 
Program. This acknowledges the 
significant effort made by staff 
across all regions and central work 
units to create safe and respectful 
workplaces. We have collectively 
strengthened our workplace cultures 
to reflect zero tolerance to domestic 
and family violence.

Workforce profiles
As at 30 June 2019, the department 
had 184.1 full-time equivalent 
staff with a head count of 190. 
The permanent separation rate 
for the 2018-19 financial year was 
7.27 per cent. The absenteeism rate 
for staff for the quarter ended 30 
June 2019 was 3.7 per cent with the 
Queensland Public Sector benchmark 
being 4.58 per cent.

Number of employees by age and gender as at 30 June 2019.

Number of employees by gender and annual earnings as if working fulltime as at 
30 June 2019.
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The department supports the Queensland Government’s targets for diversity in the workforce. 
Our progress as at 30 June 2019 is outlined below.

 

Headcount: 193 Census return rate 68%

Gender: Female 64.8% Male 32.2%

Suggested 
foundation 

2022 target

Current data Minimum target

% % n= % n= Gap

Total women at SES and above  
(incl. equivalent, S122 & CEO)1

50 56.52% 13 50 11 2

Women at Senior Officer level1 50 70.00% 38 50 5 33

Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait  
Islander people

3 1.68% 2 3 6 -4

People with disability 8 3.35% 7 8 15 -8

Non-English-Speaking Background 10 10.60% 21 10 19 2

Notes:  
1.  Based on salary not classification and may differ (more or less) than the measures by classification

Redundancy
No redundancies, early retirements or retrenchment 
packages were paid during the period.

Industrial and employee relations
The Human Resources team provides advice and support 
in relation to workforce planning, capability development, 
performance management, entitlements, policies and 
processes to the department’s leaders and employees. 
This includes intervention strategies to assist with 
the early resolution and management of issues at the 
local level.

In 2018–19, continued improvement through review and 
revision of human resources materials and information 
on the department’s intranet occurred to aid in the 
accessibility and ease of use.

Our Agency Consultative Framework continues to 
enable management and union representatives to meet 
regularly to discuss a broad range of issues impacting the 
workforce. The Agency Consultative Committee convenes 
quarterly. 

The department was not party to any industrial disputes 
during 2018–19.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Budget

Variance Note Note Actual Budget Variance Actual
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income
Appropriation revenue a. 2 409,763 422,299 (12,536) 468,519
User charges and fees ND 7 104 103 1 9,977
Grants and other contributions ND 8 820 - 820 2,533
Land sales ND 6 - - - 24,632
Interest ND 10 332 327 5 4,707
Other revenue ND 11 590 921 (331) 409

Total revenue 411,609 423,650 (12,041) 510,777

Gains on disposal/remeasurement of assets ND 12 - - - 40

Total income 411,609 423,650 (12,041) 510,817

Expenses
Employee expenses 3 24,044 22,991 1,053 43,918
Supplies and services b. 6 14,190 21,638 (7,448) 41,211
Grants and subsidies c. 7 321,608 391,138 (69,530) 378,872

d. 2 57,168 - 57,168 29,109

Depreciation and amortisation e. 9 1,910 25 1,885 2,897
Revaluation decrement 9 - - - 26,239
Cost of land sales ND 6 - - - 14,252
Land inventory written off ND 23 - - - 3,558
Finance/borrowing costs ND 20 - - - 1,046
Other expenses ND 21 487 271 216 5,924

Total expenses 419,407 436,063 (16,655) 547,027

(7,797) (12,413) 4,614 (36,209)

Income tax equivalent benefit ND 31 - - 8,612

(7,797) (12,413) 4,614 (27,598)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to operating result:
Increase in asset revaluation surplus f. 11 4,389 - 4,389 4,194

Total other comprehensive income 4,389 - 4,389 4,194

Total comprehensive income (3,408) (12,413) 9,003 (23,405)

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

Deferred appropriation payable (expense) to 
Consolidated Fund 

Operating result after income tax equivalent

Operating result before income tax equivalent
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2019

Explanations of major budget versus actual variances:

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

Deferred appropriation payable (expense) to Consolidated Fund
The variance of $57.168 million represents appropriation payable to Queensland Treasury for cash received for budgeted expenses that were unspent at 
30 June 2019. This under-expenditure is mainly due to re-negotiation of some individual project completion dates by the council and the department to 
after 30 June 2019 for the 2017-19 Works for Queensland and Local Government Grants and Subsidies Programs. Additionally, some payments forecast 
under the Indigenous Councils Critical Infrastructure Program and the Racing Infrastructure Fund were unable to be made due to grantees not lodging 
claims prior to 30 June 2019.

The variance of $1.885 million in depreciation and amortisation expense is due to depreciation of the water infrastructure assets held in the Northern 
Peninsula Area which were planned to transfer to council by 30 June 2019.

Increase in asset revaluation surplus
The increase of $4.389 million in the asset revaluation surplus is due to water infrastructure assets’ method of revaluation used. GRC Quantity Surveyors 
used a combination of pricing methodologies that is, the base unit rate for each asset component was adjusted with relevant indices such as GRC gross 
adjustment index, locality index and building price index while in the previous year the revaluation was done applying a building price index.

- $55.098 million in expenditure for the 2017-19 Works for Queensland and Local Government Grants and Subsidies Programs was not finalised 
  by 30 June as agreement end dates of 30 June 2019 provide council with a one-month period to lodge final acquittal documents. Additionally, 
  some individual project completion dates have been re-negotiated by councils and the department and will be completed after 30 June 2019.

These underspends are offset by:
- advance payment of the 2019-21 Works for Queensland program resulting in additional expenditure of $50 million

- unplanned expenditure of $5 million due to new funding provided for seawalls and coastal inundation mitigation upgrades within the Torres Strait 
   Islands
- unplanned expenditure of $3.606 million due to new funding provided for the Local Government Levy Ready Grants Program to assist local 
  councils with waste disposal facility infrastructure upgrades
- unplanned expenditure of $2.1 million due to new funding provided for the upgrade to critical sewerage infrastructure in the Paroo Shire Council
- early payment of $2.7 million to Torres Shire Council as the milestone for their water treatment infrastructure upgrade project was achieved 
  earlier than anticipated

- new funding of $4.757 million for the Local Government Levy Ready Grants Program to assist local councils with waste disposal facility 
  infrastructure upgrades
- new funding for the upgrade to critical sewerage infrastructure in the Paroo Shire Council of $2.1 million
- the bring forward of a $2.7 million payment to Torres Shire Council as the water treatment infrastructure upgrade project milestone was achieved 
  earlier than anticipated. 

The actual supplies and services is $7.448 million less than the budget due to:

The actual grants and subsidies are $69.530 million lower than budgeted due to the following:  
- Planned expenditure of $44.513 million in 2018-19 was deferred to 2019-20 and 2020-21 due to a one-year extension of the Indigenous Councils 
  Critical Infrastructure Program. 
- Delayed claims and applications for funding by Racing Queensland resulted in funding of $36.097 million deferred from 2018-19 to 2019-20 and 
  beyond.

- the reclassification of $5.142 million to grants for Multicultural Affairs
- the reclassification of $1.050 million to grants for the Bundaberg Regional Council to undertake flood evacuation 4WD tracks in Pine Creek and 
  Givelda under the Bundaberg 10-year action plan (these works will continue into the 2019-20 financial year)
- planned investigation and rectification of leaks within the Solomon Dam on Palm Island not occurring in 2018-19 due to the dam levels being above 
  the required height for these works to be progressed ($0.933 million).

Supplies and services

Grants and subsidies

Depreciation and amortisation

Appropriation revenue

- new funding of $5 million for the continuation of seawalls and coastal inundation mitigation upgrades within the Torres Strait Islands

The actual appropriation revenue is $12.536 million less than the budgeted figure. This is due to funds deferred to 2019-20 for the Indigenous Councils 
Critical Infrastructure Program of $33.148 million as a result of a one-year extension of the program to provide Indigenous Councils with a four year period 
to complete projects (this revised timeline acknowledges the challenges of undertaking infrastructure projects in remote locations) and for the Racing 
Infrastructure Fund of $29.454 million due to delayed claims and applications by Racing Queensland.

The deferrals are offset by:
- increased Works for Queensland funding of $35.949 million due to the advance payment of the 2019-21 program

- The $11.775 million transfer of Cherbourg wastewater infrastructure assets to the council was delayed to early 2019-20 due to an increase in 
   project scope made possible by project savings.

- the $5.280 million transfer of Palm Island wastewater infrastructure assets to the council in July 2018 that was planned to occur in June 2018

- unplanned expenditure of $3.952 million for Multicultural Affairs initiatives following re-classification from supplies and services
- expenditure of $3.1 million to finalise claims under the 2016-17 Works for Queensland program that remained outstanding at 30 June 2018 due to 
  re-negotiation of agreement end dates.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019

2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Budget

Variance Note Note Actual Budget Variance Actual
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents g. 14 68,094 8,699 59,395 42,818
Receivables 8 2,333 2,465 (132) 4,253
Other assets ND 24 92 - 92 -

Total current assets 70,519 11,164 59,355 47,071

Non-current assets
Receivables 8 4,010 4,009 1 4,597
Property, plant and equipment h. 9 58,964 45,833 13,131 59,560
Intangible assets i. ND 30 - 1,300 (1,300) -

Total non-current assets 62,974 51,142 11,832 64,157

Total assets 133,493 62,306 71,187 111,228

Current liabilities
Payables j. 10 60,756 2,696 58,060 34,555
Accrued employee benefits 1,048 897 151 913
Other current liabilities 45 - 45 -

Total current liabilities 61,849 3,593 58,256 35,468

Non-current liabilities
Payables 10 - - - 126
Other non-current liabilities ND 35 222 - 222 683

Total non-current liabilities 222 - 222 809

Total liabilities 62,071 3,593 58,478 36,277

Net assets 71,422 58,713 12,709 74,951

Equity
Contributed equity 79,101 - - 79,162
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) (21,893) - - (14,036)
Asset revaluation surplus 11 14,214 - - 9,825

Total equity 71,422 58,713 12,709 74,951

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019

Explanations of major budget versus actual variances:

g.

h.

i.

j.

Intangible assets
The variance of $1.3 million is due to the new local government grants management system project not commencing the development phase this year.  
However, the project has undertaken an intensive research phase during 2018-19 that involved consultation with stakeholders and documentation of the 
system requirements. This phase has been necessary to ensure suitable product/system selection for implementation.

The variance of $13.131 million is due to the continuation of works on the Cherbourg wastewater infrastructure assets that are now planned to transfer to 
the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council in early 2019-20. Savings realised on this project allowed additional works to be undertaken which has delayed 
final completion and handover to the council.  

Property, plant and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents

The current payables variance of $58.060 million is principally due to unspent appropriation to be returned to Queensland Treasury for unspent funds at 30 
June 2019. This under-expenditure is mainly due to re-negotiation of some individual project completion dates by the council and the department to after 
30 June 2019 for the 2017-19 Works for Queensland and Local Government Grants and Subsidies Programs. Additionally, some payments forecast under 
the Indigenous Councils Critical Infrastructure Program and the Racing Infrastructure Fund were unable to be made due to grantees not lodging claims 
prior to 30 June 2019.

The variance of $59.395 million is mainly due to unspent appropriation received by the department for budgeted expenses that were unspent at 30 June 
2019. This under-expenditure is mainly due to re-negotiation of some individual project completion dates by the council and the department to after 30 
June 2019 for the 2017-19 Works for Queensland and Local Government Grants and Subsidies Programs. Additionally, some payments forecast under the 
Indigenous Councils Critical Infrastructure Program and the Racing Infrastructure Fund were unable to be made due to grantees not lodging claims prior to 
30 June 2019.

Current payables
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note Contributed 
Equity

Accumulated 
Surplus/
(Deficit)

Asset 
Revaluation 

Surplus

Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance - 1 July 2017 861,459 (10,009) 29,204 880,654

Operating result - (27,598) - (27,598)

Other comprehensive income
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 11 - - 4,194 4,194

Total comprehensive income for the year - (27,598) 4,194 (23,405)

Transactions with owners as owners:
Appropriated equity injections 2 15,647 - - 15,647
Appropriated equity withdrawals 2 (1,987) - - (1,987)

Net transfers in from other Queensland Government entities 4,989 - - 4,989
Non-appropriated equity withdrawals (1,739) - - (1,739)

Net transactions with owners as owners (782,296) 23,572 (23,572) (782,296)

Balance - 30 June 2018 79,162 (14,036) 9,825 74,951

Net effect of changes in accounting policies 16 - (60) - (60)

Operating result
Operating result from continuing operations - (7,797) - (7,797)

Other comprehensive income
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 11 - - 4,389 4,389

Total comprehensive income for the year - (7,797) 4,389 (3,408)

Transactions with owners as owners:
Appropriated equity injections 2 853 - - 853
Appropriated equity withdrawals 2 (914) - - (914)

Net transactions with owners as owners (61) - - (61)

Balance - 30 June 2019 79,101 (21,893) 14,214 71,422

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

- 23,572 (23,572) -

- - (799,206)Net transfers out to other Queensland Government entities - 
machinery of government

(799,206)

Transfer of asset revaluation surplus to accumulated 
surplus/(deficit)
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Budget

Variance Note Note Actual Budget Variance Actual
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Inflows:
Appropriation receipts k. 2 380,431 422,299 (41,868) 407,346
User charges and fees 331 103 228 17,761
Grants and other contributions  41 - 41 411
GST input tax credits received from ATO 5,593 - 5,593 9,765
GST collected from customers  52 - 52 2,674
Land sales - - - 24,632
Interest 332 - 332 4,719
Other 600 921 (321) 126

Outflows:
Employee expenses (23,297) (22,991) (306) (45,793)
Supplies and services l. (15,498) (21,638) 6,140 (47,819)
Grants and subsidies m. (316,615) (378,398) 61,783 (374,316)
GST paid to suppliers (4,348) - (4,348) (10,186)
GST remitted to ATO (75) - (75) (4,628)
Payment for land inventories - - - (23,052)
Income tax expense - - - (7,245)
Finance/borrowing costs - - - (1,046)
Other (453) (271) (182) (12,947)

Net cash used in/provided by operating activities 27,094 25 27,069 (59,600)

Cash flows from investing activities
Inflows:
Sales of property, plant and equipment - - - 4,087
Loans and advances redeemed 587 914 (327) 3,328

Outflows:
Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,345) (1,990) (355) (18,641)
Payments for intangible assets n. - (1,300) 1,300 -
Payments for investments - - - (12,550)
Loans and advances provided - - (23,034)

Net cash used in/provided by investing activities (1,758) (2,376) 618 (46,810)

Cash flows from financing activities
Inflows:
Proceeds from borrowings - - - 24,016
Equity injections o. 853 3,265 (2,412) 15,647

Outflows:
Equity withdrawals (914) (914) - (3,726)
Borrowing redemptions - - - (5,535)

Net cash used in/provided by financing activities (61) 2,351 (2,412) 30,402

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,275 - 25,275 (76,008)

- - - (148,735)

Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance 14 42,818 8,699 34,119 267,562
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance 14 68,094 8,699 59,395 42,818

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
from restructuring
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2019

Explanations of major budget versus actual variances:

k.

l.

m.

n.

o.

Payments for intangible assets

Grants and subsidies

Equity injections

Supplies and services

The actual appropriation receipts are lower than the budgeted figure by $41.868 million mainly due to funds deferred to 2019-20 and beyond for the 
Indigenous Councils Critical Infrastructure Program and the Racing Infrastructure Fund. This is offset to some extent by funds brought forward for the early 
release of the 2019-20 Works for Queensland Program.

Appropriation receipts

The actual supplies and services payments is $6.140 million less than the budget due to the reclassification of $5.142 million to grants for Multicultural 
Affairs and $1.050 million in grants for the Bundaberg Regional Council to undertake flood evacuation 4WD tracks in Pine Creek and Givelda under the 
Bundaberg 10-year action plan (these works will continue into the 2019-20 financial year).

The variance of $1.3 million is due to the new local government grants management system project not commencing the development phase this year.  
However, the project has undertaken an intensive research phase during 2018-19 that involved consultation with stakeholders and documentation of the 
system requirements. This phase has been necessary to ensure suitable product/system selection for implementation.

The actual grants and subsidies payments are $61.783 million lower than budget due to reduced payments for the Indigenous Councils Critical 
Infrastructure Program ($44.513 million), the Racing Infrastructure Fund ($34.725 million), and the 2017-19 Local Government Grants and Subsidies 
Program and Works for Queensland Program ($55.098 million). 

This is offset by:
- the bring forward for the 2019-20 Works for Queensland Program ($50 million)
- higher than anticipated expenditure for the Torres Shire Council water treatment infrastructure upgrade project ($2.7 million)
- new funding received and paid during the year for seawalls and coastal inundation mitigation upgrades within the Torres Strait Islands ($5 million), 
  Local Government Levy Ready Grants Program ($3.606 million), and upgrades to critical sewerage infrastructure in the Paroo Shire Council ($2.1 
  million)
- unplanned expenditure of $3.952 million for Multicultural Affairs initiatives following re-classification from supplies and services
- expenditure of $3.1 million to finalise claims under the 2016-17 Works for Queensland program that remained outstanding at 30 June 2018 due to 
  re-negotiation of agreement end dates.

Reduced equity injections of $2.412 million are due to deferred capital expenditure on the new local government grants management system project and 
deferred commencement of works to replace asbestos cement pipes within the Northern Peninsula Area Water Supply System.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
Reconciliation of operating result to net cash provided by operating activities $'000 $'000

ND 37.
Operating surplus/(deficit) (7,797) (27,598)

Non-cash items included in operating result:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,910 2,897
Impairment losses 52 4
Goods and services provided below fair value - 2,649
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 305
Revaluation decrements - 26,239
Transfer of non-current physical assets to local councils 5,279 -

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables 194 815
(Increase)/decrease in GST input tax credits receivable 1,222 -
(Increase)/decrease in ALCS and LSL reimbursement receivables 615 -
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax - (21,112)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories - (5,245)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (92) 67
Increase/(decrease) in payables 25,081 (40,685)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued employee benefits 594 (1,469)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 36 3,532
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,094 (59,600)
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   Treasury. The effective date of transfer w
as 1 January 2018.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Basis of financial statement preparation for the period ended 30 June 2019

General information

Compliance with prescribed requirements

Presentation

The reporting entity

Major departmental services

For information in relation to the department's financial statements, please call 13 74 68, email info@dlgrma.qld.qov.au or visit the department's website 
www.dlgrma.qld.gov.au.

  Promote Queensland as a unified, harmonious and inclusive community.

New accounting standards applied for the first time in these financial statements are outlined in note 16.

The department has prepared these financial statements in compliance with section 42 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 . The 
financial statements comply with Queensland Treasury's Minimum Reporting Requirements for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018.

The financial statements include all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the department. The department has no controlled entities.

At reporting date, the reporting entity consists of the following three major departmental services:

The department is a not-for-profit entity and these general purpose financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis (except for the statement of cash 
flows which is prepared on a cash basis) in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations applicable to not-for-profit entities.

The head office and principal place of business of the department is level 34, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000.

Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 or where the amount is $500 or less, to 
zero, unless disclosure of the full amount is specifically required. Amounts shown in these financial statements may not add to the correct sub-totals or totals 
due to rounding.

Comparative information reflects the audited 2017-18 financial statements and has been restated, where necessary, to be consistent with disclosures in the 
current reporting period.

  Provide high quality and timely administration of both the local government system and local government funding programs.

  Administer the Racing Act 2002  and manage programs that support a viable, prosperous racing industry in Queensland.

• Local Government

• Racing

Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Director-General and Chief Finance Officer at the date of signing the management certificate.

The Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs is a Queensland Government department established under the Public Service Act 
2008  and controlled by the State of Queensland, which is the ultimate parent.

• Multicultural Affairs Queensland
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

1.

2. 2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000

Budgeted appropriation revenue 422,299 514,218
Transfers from other departments - 33,305
Transfers to other departments - (92,008)
Treasurer's transfers (41,868) (48,169)
Total appropriation receipts (cash) 380,431 407,346
Plus: closing balance of appropriation revenue receivable 8 223 -

- (25)

Plus:  opening balance of deferred appropriation payable to Consolidated Fund 29,109 61,198
Less: closing balance of deferred appropriation payable to Consolidated Fund (note 10) (57,168) (29,109)
Net appropriation revenue 352,595 439,410
Plus: deferred appropriation payable to Consolidated Fund (expense) 57,168 29,109
Appropriation revenue recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income 409,763 468,519

Budgeted equity adjustment appropriation 2,351 66,940
Transfers to other departments - (48,675)
Treasurer's transfers (2,412) (4,605)
Equity adjustment recognised in contributed equity (61) 13,660

Accounting policy - Appropriation revenue

Less: opening balance of appropriation revenue receivable transferred in as a result of 
          machinery of government changes

Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to equity adjustment 
recognised in contributed equity

Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to appropriation revenue recognised in 
operating result

The department has a vision for dynamic and effective local governments, engaged and cohesive communities and for a sustainable and vibrant racing 
industry in Queensland.

• create jobs in a strong economy through funding of local government infrastructure and community projects across the State 
• be a responsive government by delivering integrated services in collaboration with other agencies and with stakeholders and partners in the local 
  government sector, across the racing industry and in diverse communities across Queensland
• support initiatives to encourage participation and social cohesion to keep Queenslanders healthy.

Appropriation revenue

Appropriations provided under the Appropriation Act  2019  are recognised as revenue when received. Amounts appropriated to the department for transfer to 
other entities in accordance with legislative or other requirements are reported as administered item appropriations (refer note 15).

Objectives and principal activities of the department

The department actively contributes to the Queensland Government’s plan to:
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

3. Employee expenses 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Employee benefits
Salaries and wages 17,952 31,869
Employer superannuation contributions 2,502 4,485
Annual leave levy 1,918 3,608
Sick leave expense 632 1,166
Long service leave levy 371 689
Termination benefits 78 709
Other employee benefits 45 290

Employee related expenses
Workers' compensation premium 29 119
Other employee related expenses 517 983
Total employee expenses 24,044 43,918

Full-time equivalent employees 184 171

Defined Contribution Plans  - Contributions are made to eligible complying superannuation funds based on the rates specified in the relevant Enterprise 
Bargaining Agreement or other conditions of employment. Contributions are expensed when they are paid or become payable following completion of the 
employee’s service each pay period.

Post-employment benefits for superannuation are provided through defined contribution (accumulation) plans or the Queensland Government’s QSuper 
defined benefit plan as determined by the employee’s conditions of employment.

Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is expected to continue in future 
periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is 
recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken.

Superannuation

Under the Queensland Government's Annual Leave Central Scheme and Long Service Leave Scheme, the department is required to pay a levy to cover the 
cost of employees' annual leave (including leave loading and on-costs) and long service leave. The levies are expensed in the period in which they are 
payable. Amounts paid to employees for leave are claimed from the scheme quarterly in arrears. No provision for leave is recognised in the department's 
financial statements as the liability is held on a whole-of-government basis and reported in those financial statements.

Defined Benefit Plan  - The liability for defined benefits is held on a whole-of-government basis and reported in those financial statements. The amount of 
contributions for defined benefit plan obligations is based upon the rates determined by the Treasurer on the advice of the State Actuary. Contributions are 
paid by the department at the specified rate following completion of the employee’s service each pay period. The department’s obligations are limited to those 
contributions paid.

Annual leave and long service leave

Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the statement of financial position at current salary rates. As the department expects 
such liabilities to be wholly settled within 12 months of reporting date, the liabilities are recognised at undiscounted amounts. 

Sick leave

Workers' compensation premiums

Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are detailed in note 4.

Accounting policy - Employee expenses

Key management personnel and remuneration

The department pays premiums to WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation. Workers' compensation insurance is a 
consequence of employing employees, but is not counted in an employee's total remuneration package. It is not an employee benefit and is recognised 
separately as employee related expenses.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

4. Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Details of key management personnel (KMP)

(b) Remuneration expenses

• short-term employee expenses including:
-

-
• long-term employee benefits include amounts expensed in respect of long service leave entitlement earned
• post-employment expenses include amounts expensed in respect of employer superannuation obligations
• 

Executive Director (Local Government and Regional 
Services)

Promotes the sustainability, integrity, capacity and performance of local government through a sound 
governance framework, a network of regional advisors, capacity building training and tools and through 
grants and financial advice.

Promotes Queensland as a united, harmonious and inclusive community and the communication and 
engagement functions of the department.

termination benefits include payments in lieu of notice on termination and other lump sum separation entitlements (excluding annual and long service leave 
entitlements) payable on termination of employment or acceptance of an offer of termination of employment.

Drives the department’s whole-of-government leadership role in infrastructure policy, planning and 
coordination, including delivery of the State Infrastructure Plan.

Deputy Director-General (Infrastructure Policy and 
Planning)

non-monetary benefits consisting of provision of car parking together with fringe benefits tax applicable to the benefit

Positions relevant only to 2017-18

Executive Director (Finance, Performance and 
Programs)

Provides direction and leadership to enhance strategic capability and capacity to deliver legislative 
frameworks, funding programs and services to local governments.

Remuneration policy for the department's other KMP is set by the Queensland Public Service Commission as provided for under the Public Service Act 2008 . 
Individual remuneration and other terms of employment (including motor vehicle entitlements) are specified in employment contracts.

Executive Director (Racing) Administers the Racing Act 2002  and the provision of policy advice to the government relating to the 
long term sustainability of the racing industry in Queensland.

Position responsibility

Executive Director (Grants Review)

Executive Director (Strategy and Service Delivery)(1)
Maintains appropriate statutory and policy frameworks, develop local government strategy and policy 
and promote the sustainability, integrity, capacity and performance of local government through a 
network of regional advisors.

Leads the development and implementation of strategies, policies and programs that support a 
sustainable local government sector.

Deputy Director-General (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement)

Delivers responsive and robust governance and engagement strategies to the department and oversight 
of the multicultural affairs and racing policy functions.

Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer)

Executive Director (Multicultural Affairs Queensland 
and Engagement)

Deputy Director-General (Planning)

The following details for non-Ministerial KMP reflect those departmental positions that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the department during 2018-19 and 2017-18. Further information about these positions can be found in the body of the Annual Report under the 
section relating to the Executive Leadership Team.

Position

The department’s responsible Minister is identified as part of the department’s KMP. That Minister is the Minister for Local Government, Minister for Racing 
and Minister for Multicultural Affairs.

Manages the department’s relationship with South Bank Corporation and manages the State’s 
obligations and responsibilities with Brisbane City Council in its role as park managers for the South 
Bank and Roma Street Parklands.

Ministerial remuneration entitlements are outlined in the Legislative Assembly of Queensland’s Members’ Remuneration Handbook.
The department does not bear any cost of remuneration of Ministers. The majority of Ministerial entitlements are paid by the Legislative Assembly, with the 
remaining entitlements being provided by Ministerial Services Branch within the Department of the Premier and Cabinet. As all Ministers are reported as KMP 
of the Queensland Government, aggregate remuneration expenses for all Ministers is disclosed in the Queensland General Government and Whole-of-
Government Consolidated Financial Statements, which are published as part of Queensland Treasury’s Report on State Finances.

Remuneration expenses for KMP comprise the following elements:

(1) Due to restructure that took effect on 4 February 2019, Executive Director-Strategy, Governance and Engagement has changed to Executive Director-
Strategy and Service Delivery

Queensland Government Architect

General Manager (Economic Development 
Queensland)

Provides strategic leadership and direction for the efficient, effective and economic financial 
administration of the department.

Director-General Provides values-based leadership and management to ensure the department is responsive to 
community and business needs and government priorities.

Deputy Director-General (Local Government 
Division)

Executive Director (Corporate) Delivers strategic advice, legal services, human resources, service delivery and contract management 
of people, procedures, corporate reporting and planning, service level agreements and change.

Leads the implementation planning phase of the review of state government grants provided to local 
governments and deliver a new grants to local government model.

Executive Director (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement)(1)

Maintains appropriate statutory and policy frameworks for portfolio responsibilities, including the 
provision of corporate services such as legal services and Cabinet and Executive Services.

Delivers the legislative framework and overarching policy for land use planning and development 
assessment.

Identifies, plans, facilitates and delivers property development and infrastructure projects across 
Queensland.

Provides whole-of-government leadership and strategic advice in relation to the built environment, urban 
design, procurement and heritage issues.

Executive Director - South Bank

salaries, allowances and leave entitlements earned and expensed for the entire year, or for that part of the year during which the employee occupied a 
KMP position
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

4. Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(b) Remuneration expenses (continued)

2019

Non - 
monetary 
expenses

$'000

7

6

2

5

3

4

2

-

7

7

7

2

Deputy Director-General (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement) (from 25/2/19 to 30/6/19)

22

- 89

Position

Director-General

$'000

The following disclosures focus on the expenses incurred by the department attributable to non-Ministerial KMP during the respective reporting periods. The 
amounts disclosed are determined on the same basis as expenses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

1

Short-term employee 
expenses

Long-term 
employee 
expenses

4

22

10

320

Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer) 199 -

Termination 
benefits

-

51

2

$'000 $'000

4

Deputy Director-General (Local Government 
Division) (from 13/8/18) 197

93

Executive Director (Racing) (from 1/3/19)

19

Total expenses

Executive Director (Multicultural Affairs Queensland 
and Engagement)

2

Executive Director (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement) (to 1/2/19)

Executive Director (Grants Review) (from 1/3/19) 62 1 7 - 70

213

-

79

Executive Director (Finance, Performance and 
Programs) (from 11/4/19) 45

4

- 228

73

232

-

- 375

21

109

197

Monetary 
expenses

$'000

99

2

7

Executive Director (Corporate)

Post - 
employment 

expenses

$'000

4

-

7 41

7

Deputy Director-General (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement) - former (to 15/2/19) 104

63

183

12 - 123

Executive Director (Strategy and Service Delivery) 
(from 4/2/19) 85 2 9

4

-

- 229

1
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

4. Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(b) Remuneration expenses (continued)

2018

Non - 
monetary 
expenses

$'000

1

2

3

5

6

3

8

3

3

3

3

-               

2

1

4

4

4

4

(c) Performance payments

(2) Due to leave arrangements, the periods of service for the Director-General role include time periods that overlap.

No remuneration packages for KMP provide for any performance or bonus payments.

Executive Director - South Bank 74 2 8

Queensland Government Architect 109 2 11 - 127

General Manager (Economic Development 
Queensland) 187 4 21 - 215

Deputy Director-General (Infrastructure Policy and 
Planning) 121 2 14 - 140

- 87

58

Positions transferred out as a result of the machinery of government changes

Deputy Director-General (Planning) - acting (from 
25/9/17) 80 2 8 - 92

1 4 - 46Deputy Director-General (Planning) - acting former 
(1/7 - 26/7/17 and 29/8 - 22/9/17) 40

1 5 -

Short-term employee 
expenses

Long-term 
employee 
expenses

Post - 
employment 

expenses

Termination 
benefits Total expenses

Monetary 
expenses

$'000

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

8 - 82

90

Deputy Director-General (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement) 228 5 26 - 267

Executive Director (Multicultural Affairs Queensland 
and Engagement) (from 2/2/18)

86 2 9 - 99

Executive Director (Local Government and Regional 
Services) (from 2/2 - 22/5/18) 53

- 91

Director-General - former acting (2/1 - 31/5/18) (2)

190 428

Executive Director (Strategy, Governance and 
Engagement) (from 2/02/18) 70 1 7 - 82

Executive Director (Corporate) (from 2/2/18) 76 2 7 - 87

Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer) (from 
2/2/18)

Director-General - (from 28/5/18) 34 1 4 - 39

2 9 - 103

Deputy Director-General (Local Government and 
Regional Services) - acting (1/7 - 1/9/17 and from 
30/11/17)

152 3 15 - 176

Deputy Director-General (Local Government and 
Regional Services) - former (4/9 - 29/12/17) 79 1 8

Director-General - former acting (17/3 - 27/5/18) (2) 71

32

Position

1

67 - 16 153 238

Director-General - former (to 23/2/18) (2) 201 -
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

5. Related party transactions

(a) Transactions with people/entities related to KMP

(b) Transactions with other Queensland Government-controlled entities

6. Supplies and services 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Consultants and contractors 6,491 25,903
Property and building expenses 2,819 6,693
Shared service provider fee 1,749 2,743
Computer/information technology expenses 1,113 2,453
Marketing and public relations expenses 542 1,190
Other 1,476 2,229
Total supplies and services 14,190 41,211

7. Grants and subsidies

Local governments 278,640 348,903
Statutory bodies 34,988 15,843
Charities and community groups 7,425 4,219
Queensland Government departments 356 1,388
Industry 10 7,958
Contributions 189 562
Total grants and subsidies 321,608 378,872

Queensland Audit Office (QAO) performs the financial audit of the department. Total audit fees payable to QAO relating to the 2018-19 financial statements 
are quoted to be $99,500 (2017-18: $208,000).

Accounting Policy – Distinction between Grants and procurement
For a transaction to be classified as supplies and services, the value of goods or services received by the department must be of approximately equal value to 
the value of the consideration exchanged for those goods or services. Where this is not the substance of the arrangement, the transaction is classified as a 
grant in note 7.

The department has leases with the Department of Housing and Public Works for commercial office accommodation, storage facilities and car park spaces 
(refer notes 6 and 12).

• Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDMIP) who provides corporate services relating to Ethics and Integrity, 
Information Management and Technology, Facilities Management, Internal Audit and Procurement. Corporate services fees paid to DSDMIP in 2019 was 
$0.922 million (2018: $1.572 million)

The department has service level and partnering agreements with the following Queensland Government controlled entities:

The department’s primary ongoing sources of funding from government for its services are appropriation revenue (note 2) and equity injections 
(note 2), both of which are provided in cash via Queensland Treasury.

Accounting policy - Grants and subsidies
Grants and subsidies are in accordance with the funding agreement between the department and the recipient and are non-reciprocal. Grants are treated as 
an expense when the recipient can control the use of the resources or when the department's obligation for a transfer arises.

• Queensland Shared Services (QSS) who provides corporate business services and technology solutions to support finance and human resources 
transactions. Business services and technology solutions fees paid to QSS in 2019 was $1.047 million (2018: $1.840 million).

The department had no transactions with people and entities related to its key management personnel during the financial year.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

8. Receivables 2019 2018
Current $'000 $'000
Trade debtors 1,098 1,939
Less: Loss allowance (694) (582)

404 1,357

GST input tax credits receivable 297 1,519
Appropriation revenue receivable 223 -
Loans receivable (1) 914 914
Other 495 463
Total current receivables 2,333 4,253

Non-current
Loans receivable (1) 4,010 4,597
Total non-current receivables 4,010 4,597

(1)

Gross 
receivables

Loss                   
rate

Expected 
credit losses

Gross 
receivables

Impairment 
allowance

$'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000
              739  0.00                    -                  1,708                   -   
              308  0.00                    -                  1,530                   -   
           5,261  0.00                    -                  5,536                   -   
              693  100                 693                   642                582 
                29  0.00                    -                        -                     -   
                  7  9.00                     1                     17                   -   
           7,037                 694                9,432                582 

2019 2018
Movement in loss allowance Note $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 July 582 1,261
Net effect of changes in accounting policy 16 60 -
Increase in allowance recognised in operating result 52 -
Balance transferred as a result of machinery of government changes - (679)
Balance at 30 June 694 582

Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery (i.e. the agreed purchase/contract price). Settlement of these amounts 
is required within 30 days from the invoice date.

The loss allowance reflects lifetime expected credit losses and incorporates reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. Economic changes 
impacting the department's debtors, and relevant industry data form part of the department's impairment assessment.
No loss allowance is recorded for the department’s receivables from Queensland Government agencies, Australian Government agencies or Queensland 
Local Government on the basis of materiality. Refer to note 14 for the department’s credit risk management policies.
Where the department has no reasonable expectation of recovering an amount owed by a debtor, the debt is written-off by directly reducing the receivable 
against the loss allowance. This occurs when the department has ceased enforcement activity. If the amount of debt written off exceeds the loss allowance, 
the excess is recognised as an impairment loss.

Credit risk exposure of receivables
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date for receivables is the gross carrying amount of those assets. No collateral is held as security and there 
are no other credit enhancements relating to the department’s receivables.
As the department has few debtors, receivables are assessed individually per type of debtor to measure the expected credit losses. Amount outstanding are 
assessed for probability of default and loss given default. The probability of default reflect historical observed default rates calculated using credit losses 
experienced on past transactions during the last 10 years preceding 30 June 2019 for each type of debtor.

20182019

Type of debtor

Queensland Government agencies
Australian Government agencies

Private entities - grantees
Queensland  Local Government

Other
Private entities

Receivables are measured at amortised cost which approximates their fair value at reporting date.

Set out below is the credit risk exposure on the department’s trade and other debtors broken down by type of debtor. The comparative disclosure for 2018 is 
made under AASB 139 impairment rules, where receivables are assessed individually for impairment.

Loans are measured at fair value upon initial recognition and amortised over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. Where loans are provided 
at concessional below market interest rates, they are considered to have a fair value less than the actual amount lent. Any additional amount lent above the 
fair value is initially recognised as a grant in the statement of comprehensive income and then notional interest income is recognised over the term of the loan. 

These amounts represent interest free loans to councils under the Smaller Communities Assistance Program.

Accounting policy - Receivables

Accounting policy - Impairment of receivables
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ents for the year ended 30 June 2019

9.Property, plant and equipm
ent

(a) C
losing balances and reconciliation of carrying am

ount

Land
B

uildings

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

2018
2018

2019
2018

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

G
ross

94,186
         

93,253
         

57
                

108
              

12,161
         

9,987
           

-
                   

-
                   

106,404
       

103,348
       

Less: A
ccum

ulated depreciation
(47,398)

        
(43,702)

        
(42)

               
(87)

               
-

                   
-

                   
-

                   
-

                   
(47,440)

        
(43,789)

        
C

arrying am
ount - 30 June

46,788
         

49,552
         

15
                

21
                

12,161
         

9,987
           

-
                   

-
                   

58,964
         

59,560
         

R
epresented by m

ovem
ents in carrying am

ount:

C
arrying am

ount at 1 July
49,552

         
44,457

         
21

                
377

              
9,987

           
59,315

         
153,119

       
373

              
59,560

         
257,641

       
Transfer as a result of m

achinery of governm
ent changes 

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

(201,828)
      

(241)
             

-
                   

(202,069)
      

A
cquisitions

-
                   

-
                   

8
                  

-
                   

2,204
           

20,187
         

554
              

-
                   

2,213
           

20,741
         

D
isposals

-
                   

-
                   

(8)
                 

(340)
             

-
                   

-
                   

(335)
             

-
                   

(8)
                 

(675)
             

Transfer out to local governm
ent entities

(5,248)
          

(4,514)
          

(31)
               

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

(5,279)
          

(4,514)
          

Transfer to inventory
-

                   
-

                   
-

                   
-

                   
-

                   
(394)

             
-

                   
-

                   
-

                   
(394)

             
Transfer to/from

 investm
ent property

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

(14,265)
        

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

(14,265)
        

Transfers betw
een asset classes

-
                   

9,776
           

31
                

-
                   

(31)
               

(54,856)
        

45,080
         

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

N
et revaluation increm

ent/(decrem
ent)

4,389
           

1,806
           

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

3,411
           

(109)
             

4,389
           

5,108
           

D
epreciation expense

(1,905)
          

(1,973)
          

(5)
                 

(17)
               

-
                   

-
                   

-
                   

(23)
               

(1,910)
          

(2,013)
          

C
arrying am

ount - 30 June
46,788

         
49,552

         
15

                
21

                
12,161

         
9,987

           
-

                   
-

                   
58,964

         
59,560

         

Infrastructure
Plant and equipm

ent
C

apital w
ork in progress

Total
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement

Transfers between levels

Land
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment

Accounting policy - Recognition

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a historical cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds are recognised for financial 
reporting purposes in the year of acquisition:

Accounting policy - Cost of acquisition

Infrastructure

Historical cost is used for the initial recording of all property, plant and equipment acquisitions. Historical cost is determined as the value given as 
consideration and costs incidental to the acquisition (such as architects' fees and engineering design fees), plus all other costs incurred in getting the assets 
ready for use.

As the fair value of the water infrastructure assets are derived from unobservable inputs, the total fair value balance of $46.788 million (2018: $49.552 million) 
is categorised as level 3 in accordance with fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers of assets between fair value hierarchy levels during the period. 

Key estimates : Fair value is determined by estimating the cost to replace the existing assets with a modern equivalent asset. GRC applied a combination of 
pricing methodologies, all of which are adjusted to reflect the anticipated construction market for similar asset components as at 30 June 2019. The base unit 
rate for each asset component was adjusted with relevant indices such GRC gross adjustment index, locality index and building price index. This is to account 
for the additional costs to deliver the replacement assets such as trade preliminaries, statutory charges and professional fees, increase in transportation of 
labour and material to the site and reflect the current construction market trends.

Key judgement:  Specific appraisal was performed in 2018-19 by Gray Robinson & Cottrell (GRC) Quantity Surveyors. Due to the specialised nature of the 
water infrastructure assets and lack of observable market data, the most relevant basis of valuation was determined to be current replacement cost. GRC 
performed physical inspections during their site visit to assess the condition of the assets.

Valuation processes

$5,000

$1

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from another Queensland Government entity, are recognised at their fair value at the date 
of acquisition.

The department’s valuation policies and procedures are overseen by the Audit and Risk Management Committee and approved by the Chief Finance Officer. 
They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an analysis of movement in fair value and other relevant information.

The department has a comprehensive annual maintenance program for its infrastructure assets. Expenditure is only capitalised if it increases the service 
potential or useful life of the existing asset. Maintenance expenditure that merely restores original service potential is expensed.

$10,000

Categorisation of assets measured at fair value

The department holds water infrastructure assets such as reservoirs, treatment facilities and distribution systems over five managed sites located on the 
mainland of Far North Queensland. These assets are operated and maintained by a utility solutions company under contract with the department. The 
department continues discussions with Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council (NPARC) regarding the transfer of the water supply system and its 
operations to the council.

Where assets are received free of charge from a Queensland Government entity (whether as a result of a machinery-of-government or other involuntary 
transfer), the acquisition cost is recognised as the carrying amount in the books of the other entity immediately prior to the transfer.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Class
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment

Assets under construction (work in progress) are not depreciated until construction is complete and the asset is put to use or is ready for its intended use, 
whichever is the earlier. These assets are then reclassified to the relevant class within property, plant and equipment.

Work in progress is recognised at cost. All costs relating to items of property, plant and equipment constructed in house are recorded as work in progress until 
construction is complete using all direct and indirect costs, where the latter are reliably attributable. Work in progress performed under external contracts is 
recorded using the invoice amount supplied by the contractor.

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.

1.25 - 16.67
Rate %

2019
Rate %

2018

1.25 - 16.67

Impairment of non-current assets

10.00 - 25.00 10.00 - 25.00

Key judgement:  Assets measured at cost are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the 
department determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an 
impairment loss.

Infrastructure assets are measured at fair value. With respect to this asset class, the cost of items acquired during the financial year has been judged by 
management to materially represent their fair value at the end of the reporting period.

For assets measured at fair value, the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease and offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant 
class to the extent available. Where no asset revaluation surplus is available in respect of the class of asset, the loss is expensed as a revaluation decrement.

Where assets have not been specifically appraised in the reporting period, their previous valuations are materially kept up-to-date via the application of 
relevant indices. The department ensures that the application of such indices would result in a valid estimation of the assets' fair values at reporting date. The 
independent professional valuer, who performed the specific appraisals of the assets, supplies the indices to ensure consistency of valuation methodology. 
The independent professional valuer provides assurance of their robustness, validity and appropriateness for application to the relevant assets. Indices used 
are tested for reasonableness by benchmarking the recommended indices to relevant publicly available indices and analysing the trend of changes in values 
over time. Through this process, which is undertaken annually, management assesses and confirms the relevance and suitability of indices provided by the 
independent professional valuer based on the department’s circumstances.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment measured at fair value

Key estimates : For each class of depreciable assets the following depreciation rates are used:

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the appropriate class, except to the extent it 
reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an 
expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class.

On revaluation, for assets revalued using a cost valuation approach (e.g. current replacement cost), accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the 
difference between the gross amount and carrying amount, after taking into account accumulated impairment losses. This is generally referred to as the ‘gross 
method’. This applies to the department's infrastructure assets.

Infrastructure assets are revalued on an annual basis, either by appraisals undertaken by an independent professional valuer or by the use of appropriate and 
relevant indices. For financial reporting purposes, the revaluation process is overseen by the Chief Finance Officer who determines the specific revaluation 
practices and procedures in conjunction with the asset managers.

Specific appraisals using an independent professional valuer are undertaken at least once every five years. However, if a particular asset class experiences 
significant and volatile changes in fair value (that is, where indicators suggest that the value of the asset class may have changed by 20% or more since the 
previous reporting period), that asset class is subject to specific appraisal in the reporting period, where practicable, regardless of the timing of previous such 
method of revaluation.

Plant and equipment is measured at historical cost.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful lives distinct from the 
asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. Assessments of remaining useful lives of depreciable assets are performed annually.

Infrastructure and plant and equipment have finite useful lives and are depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost or revalued amount of 
each asset progressively over its estimated useful life to the department.

The fair values reported by the department are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of available significant and relevant 
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy - Measurement
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

10. Payables 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Current
Trade creditors 2,183 3,746
Grants payable 1,372 1,658
Deferred appropriation payable to Consolidated Fund 57,168 29,109
Other 33 42
Total current payables 60,756 34,555

Non-current
Trade creditors - 126
Total non-current payables - 126

11. Asset revaluation surplus
$'000 $'000 $'000

Balance - 1 July 2017 21,184 8,020 29,204
Revaluation increment 2,388 1,806 4,194
Transfer of asset revaluation surplus to accumulated surplus/(deficit) (23,572) - (23,572)
Balance - 30 June 2018 - 9,825 9,825
Revaluation increment - 4,389 4,389
Balance - 30 June 2019 - 14,214 14,214

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the contracted amount (net of any discounts).  Amounts 
owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30-day terms unless otherwise specified by the creditor. Payables of a capital nature are settled within 12 
months.

Accounting policy - Asset revaluation surplus

Land Infrastructure Total

Accounting policy - Payables

The asset revaluation surplus represents the net effect of upwards and downwards revaluations of assets to fair value.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

12. Commitments 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

- Not later than one year 2,258 1,786
- Later than one year and not later than five years 9,250 7,159
- Later than five years 19,086 17,230

30,594 26,175

Capital expenditure commitments 

- Not later than one year 2,013 5,062
- Later than one year and not later than five years 2,546 291

4,559 5,353

Grants and subsidies expenditure commitments

- Not later than one year 202,814 211,366
- Later than one year and not later than five years 131,883 70,261

334,697 281,627

The above commitments for grants and subsidies expenditure are allocated to the following categories:

- Charities and community groups 7,360 277
- Local governments 281,383 281,350
- Statutory bodies 45,954 -

334,697 281,627

Other expenditure commitments

- Not later than one year 2,010 1,444
- Later than one year and not later than five years - 20

2,010 1,464

13. Contingencies

Financial guarantees and associated risk

Native title claims
At 30 June 2019, there had been no change to the information of the two native title determinations made by the Federal Court in respect of departmental land 
covering a total area of 124,698 sqm in the Northern Peninsula area. The land has a carrying amount of $98,000. At reporting date it is not possible to make 
an estimate of any probable outcome of these claims, or any financial effects.

Commitments under operating leases at reporting date (inclusive of non-recoverable GST input tax credits) 
are payable as follows:

As at 30 June 2019, approval has been given to various grantees in accordance with formal agreements to pay the following grants and subsidies (inclusive of 
non-recoverable GST input tax credits) provided certain criteria are met:

Bank guarantees are mainly held for financial security against non-conformance of contracts across the department. The total value of bank guarantees held 
for these projects as at 30 June 2019 is $0.085 million (2017-18: $0.170 million).

There is no claim against the department through Queensland Government and Insurance Fund as at 30 June 2019. 

For 2018-19, $1.560 million (2017-18: $3.842 million) was recognised by the department as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income in respect 
of operating leases.

Other expenditure committed at the end of the period, but not recognised in the accounts, are as follows:

Operating leases are entered into as a means of acquiring access to office accommodation and car park space. Lease payments are fixed but with an annual 
escalation clause. Where it is reasonably certain that the renewal options will be exercised, the lease commitment includes the extended option period. No 
operating leases contain restrictions on financing or other leasing activities. Operating leases are recognised on a straight line basis over the period of the 
lease term.

Infrastructure capital commitments (inclusive of non-recoverable GST input tax credits) contracted for at reporting date but not recognised in the accounts are 
payable as follows:

Key judgement : No contract performance breaches have occurred and the department does not expect that the guarantees will be called upon. 
Consequently, the probability of default is considered remote and no provision for losses has been recognised in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

14. Financial risk disclosures

Financial instrument categories

2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 68,094 42,818
Financial assets at amortised cost:
    Receivables (note 8) 6,343 8,850
Total financial assets 74,436 51,668

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
    Payables (note 10) 60,756 34,681
Total financial liabilities 60,756 34,681

Financial risk management

(a) Risk exposure

The department is exposed to liquidity risk in respect 
to its payables (note 10).

The department's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks as set out in the following table:

The risk that the department may encounter difficulty in meeting 
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or another financial asset.

The department does not trade in foreign currency 
and is not materially exposed to interest rate changes, 
commodity price changes or other market prices.

Market risk

Departmental bank accounts are grouped within the whole-of-government set-off arrangement with Queensland Treasury and do not earn interest on surplus 
funds. Interest earned on the aggregate set-off arrangement balance accrues to the Consolidated Fund. 

Risk exposure

All financial risk is managed under policies approved by the department which relate to financial arrangements as required by Queensland Treasury.

Exposure

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates.

The department is exposed to credit risk in respect of 
its receivables (note 8). 

Liquidity risk

Definition

Financial risk management is implemented pursuant to government and departmental policies. These policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the department.

Accounting policy - Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the department becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The 
department has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Under Treasurer has approved an overdraft limit of $30 million for the department's controlled bank account. There is no overdraft interest charged on this 
facility. This facility was undrawn at 30 June and is available for use in the next reporting period.

For the purposes of the statement of financial position and the statement of cash flows, cash assets include all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at 
30 June 2019.

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in the statement of financial position.

Credit risk The risk that the department may incur financial loss as a result of 
another party to a financial instrument failing to discharge their 
obligation.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

14. Financial risk disclosures

Financial instrument categories

2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 68,094 42,818
Financial assets at amortised cost:
    Receivables (note 8) 6,343 8,850
Total financial assets 74,436 51,668

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
    Payables (note 10) 60,756 34,681
Total financial liabilities 60,756 34,681

Financial risk management

(a) Risk exposure

The department is exposed to liquidity risk in respect 
to its payables (note 10).

The department's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks as set out in the following table:

The risk that the department may encounter difficulty in meeting 
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or another financial asset.

The department does not trade in foreign currency 
and is not materially exposed to interest rate changes, 
commodity price changes or other market prices.

Market risk

Departmental bank accounts are grouped within the whole-of-government set-off arrangement with Queensland Treasury and do not earn interest on surplus 
funds. Interest earned on the aggregate set-off arrangement balance accrues to the Consolidated Fund. 

Risk exposure

All financial risk is managed under policies approved by the department which relate to financial arrangements as required by Queensland Treasury.

Exposure

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates.

The department is exposed to credit risk in respect of 
its receivables (note 8). 

Liquidity risk

Definition

Financial risk management is implemented pursuant to government and departmental policies. These policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the department.

Accounting policy - Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the department becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The 
department has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Under Treasurer has approved an overdraft limit of $30 million for the department's controlled bank account. There is no overdraft interest charged on this 
facility. This facility was undrawn at 30 June and is available for use in the next reporting period.

For the purposes of the statement of financial position and the statement of cash flows, cash assets include all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at 
30 June 2019.

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in the statement of financial position.

Credit risk The risk that the department may incur financial loss as a result of 
another party to a financial instrument failing to discharge their 
obligation.
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

14.

(b) Risk measurement and management strategies

Credit risk exposure

Liquidity risk - contractual maturity of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

Payables 60,756 - - 60,756
Total 60,756 - - 60,756

Financial liabilities

Payables 34,555 126 - 34,681
Total 34,555 126 - 34,681

Ageing analysis

Credit risk management practices
The department considers financial assets that are over 30 days past the due date to have a significantly increased credit risk, and measures the loss 
allowance of such assets at lifetime expected credit losses instead of 12-month expected credit losses. The exception is trade receivables (note 8), for which 
the loss allowance is always measured at lifetime expected credit losses.
All financial assets with Queensland Government agencies, Australian Government agencies and Queensland Local Governments are considered to have low 
credit risk as the department has no prior experience of default from these counterparties. The department assumes that credit risk has not increased 
significantly for these low credit risk assets.
The department typically considers a financial asset to be in default when it becomes 90 days past due. However, a financial asset can be in default before 
that point if information indicates that the department is unlikely to receive the outstanding amounts in full. The department’s assessment of default does not 
take into account any collateral or other credit enhancements.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

1 - 5 years
$'000

< 1 year
$'000

Credit risk

Financial risk disclosures (continued)

< 1 year
$'000

> 5 years
$'000

The department’s write off policy is disclosed in note 8.

Market risk The department does not undertake any hedging in relation to interest risk and manages its 
risk as per the department's risk management policy.

Credit risk exposure relating to receivables is disclosed in note 8.

The following tables set out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the department. They represent the contractual maturity of financial liabilities, 
calculated based on undiscounted cash flows relating to the liabilities at reporting date. 

Total
$'000

1 - 5 years
$'000

> 5 years
$'000

Total
$'000

2018 payable in

Liquidity risk

Credit risk is managed through the use of a credit management policy articulated in the 
department's Financial Management Practice Manual. This policy aims to reduce the exposure 
to credit default by ensuring that credits are granted to customers with good credit history that 
have the capacity to repay the department within the agreed timeframe. The department 
monitors all funds owed on a monthly basis.

Measurement method Risk management strategies

The department measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

Sensitivity analysis The department manages liquidity risk through the use of the Under Treasurer approved 
overdraft limit for the department's controlled bank account. This overdraft limit reduces the 
exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring the department has sufficient funds available to meet 
employee and supplier obligations as they fall due.

Risk exposure

2019 payable in
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15.
Adm

inistered activities

Schedule of adm
inistered item

s

N
ote

B
udget

B
udget 

Variance

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2018

2019
2019

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

$'000
$'000

Adm
inistered incom

e
A

ppropriation revenue (3)
(a)

493,026
490,652

50,630
-

-
244,571

-
-

-
15,500

543,656
750,723

242,144
301,512

G
rants and other contributions (4)

(b)
496,889

473,087
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
496,889

473,087
246,380

250,509
U

ser charges and fees
(c)

382
370

-
-

-
-

-
1,434

-
-

382
1,804

444
(62)

O
ther revenue

-
-

-
-

-
6,480

-
-

-
-

-
6,480

-
-

Total adm
inistered incom

e
990,297

964,109
50,630

-
-

251,051
-

1,434
-

15,500
1,040,927

1,232,094
488,968

551,959

Adm
inistered expenses

G
rants and subsidies (3)

(d)
497,854

490,565
50,630

-
-

244,571
-

-
-

15,500
548,484

750,636
247,124

301,360
Transfers of adm

inistered revenue to governm
ent (4)

492,291
473,470

-
-

-
6,480

-
1,434

-
-

492,291
481,384

241,844
250,447

O
ther expenses

(a)
152

74
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
152

74
-

152
Total adm

inistered expenses
990,297

964,109
50,630

-
-

251,051
-

1,434
-

15,500
1,040,927

1,232,094
488,968

551,959

O
perating surplus/(deficit)

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

            
-

-

Adm
inistered assets

C
urrent

  C
ash

303
80

3,667
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

3,970
80

-
3,970

  R
eceivables

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Total current assets
303

80
3,667

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
3,970

80
-

3,970

N
on-current

  Land
(e)

98
98

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

98
98

98
-

Total non-current assets
98

98
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
98

98
98

-

Total assets
401

178
3,667

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
4,068

178
98

3,970

Adm
inistered liabilities

C
urrent

  P
ayables

152
6

3,667
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

3,818
6

-
3,818

  P
ayables to governm

ent
(a)

152
74

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

152
74

-
152

Total current liabilities
303

80
3,667

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
3,970

80
-

3,970
 

N
et adm

inistered assets
98

98
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
98

98
98

-

Explanations of m
ajor variances - adm

inistered activities:

(4) The actual figure is higher than the budgeted am
ount m

ainly due to the early paym
ent of the Financial A

ssistance G
rants of $250.578 m

illion by the A
ustralian G

overnm
ent in June 2019 that applies to 2019-20.

(3) The actual figure is higher than the budgeted am
ount m

ainly due to the early paym
ent of the Financial A

ssistance G
rants of $250.578 m

illion by the A
ustralian G

overnm
ent in June 2019 that applies to 2019-20 and additional funding from

 the Q
ueensland G

overnm
ent 

    for R
acing Q

ueensland initiatives.

Local G
overnm

ent - 
Actual (1)

B
etter Planning for 

Q
ueensland - Actual (2)

Infrastructure Policy and 
Planning - Actual (2)

Actual

(1) R
elevant Local G

overnm
ent Funding P

rogram
s and C

om
m

unity Initiatives have been incorporated into Local G
overnm

ent in 2018-19. C
orresponding 2017-18 com

parative balances have been restated to be consistent w
ith the current reporting period.

R
acing - Actual

Funding Program
s and 

C
om

m
unity Initiatives - 
Actual (2)

(2) Function has transferred to D
epartm

ent of S
tate D

evelopm
ent, M

anufacturing, Infrastructure and P
lanning effective 1 January 2018 as a result of m

achinery of governm
ent changes. 
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

15. Administered activities (continued)
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

(a) Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to administered income
Budgeted appropriation 242,144 847,409
Transfers to other departments - (337,446)
Treasurer's transfers 44,280 52,774
Unforeseen expenditure 257,158 187,947
Total administered receipts 543,582 750,684

Plus: opening balance of appropriation revenue payable to Consolidated Fund 74 40
Less: closing balance of deferred appropriation payable (152) (74)
Net appropriation revenue 543,504 750,650

Plus: deferred appropriation payable (expense) 152 74
Administered revenue recognised 543,656 750,723

Budgeted equity adjustment appropriation - 129,000
Transfers to other departments - (83,664)
Equity adjustment recognised in contributed equity - 45,336

(b) Grants and other contributions
 Commonwealth 496,889 473,087
Total grants and other contributions 496,889 473,087

(c) User charges and fees
Administered fees and levies were received for the following:
   State Assessment and Referral Agency - 1,434
   Levy - Queensland Government entities (1) 382 370
Total user charges and fees 382 1,804
(1) Kuranda Skyrail levy is collected by Queensland Rail and forwarded to the department.

(d) Grants and subsidies
Administered grants and subsidies were made to the following entities:
   Local governments 497,854 490,565
   Racing Queensland 50,630 -
   Queensland Reconstruction Authority (2) - 244,571
   Cross River Rail Delivery Authority (2) - 10,000
   Building Queensland (2) - 5,500
Total grants and subsidies 548,484 750,636

(e) Land at fair value
Land - Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council 98 98
Total land at fair value 98 98

Accounting policies applicable to administered items are consistent with the equivalent policies for controlled items, unless stated otherwise.

Fair value for land is determined by establishing its market value by reference to observable prices in an active market or recent market transactions using 
direct comparison to the sales history of similar properties based on location, area, access and typography.

The department administers, but does not control, certain resources on behalf of the government. In doing so, it has responsibility for administering those 
activities and related transactions and balances efficiently and effectively, but does not have the discretion to deploy those resources for the achievement of 
the department's own objectives.

Accounting policy - Administered activities

Key judgement : State Valuation Services (SVS) performed specific appraisal on the land assets in 2017-18. Due to the use of market observable prices from 
similar assets, land has been valued using a market approach and has been categorised as level 2 in accordance with fair value measurement hierarchy.          

The department as trustee for the State of Queensland holds seven parcels of deed of grant in trust land located in the remote Northern Peninsula Area 
Regional Council (NPARC). The department continues discussions with NPARC regarding the transfer of these land to the council. 

Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to equity adjustment recognised in 
contributed equity     

The Under Treasurer has approved an overdraft limit of $350 million for the department's administered bank account. There is no overdraft interest charged on 
this facility. This facility was undrawn at 30 June and is available for use in the next reporting period.

Major administered revenues include appropriations and grants received from the Australian and the Queensland Government that are forwarded onto local 
governments and other Queensland government bodies.

In 2018-19, there has been no movement in the fair value of the land assets using the market-based indices as provided by SVS. The use of market-based 
indices are observable inputs that are developed using market data and publicly available information on market transactions.

(2) Following the machinery of government changes effective 1 January 2018, the responsibility of forwarding the administered appropriation revenue to 
Queensland Reconstruction Authority and Building Queensland has been reallocated to DSDMIP. Administered appropriation revenue to the Cross River Rail 
Delivery Authority has been reallocated to Queensland Treasury. 
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DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, RACING AND MULTICULTURAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019

16. Changes in accounting policies – AASB 9 Financial Instruments

AASB 9 
measurement 

category

Impairment 
allowance

30 June 2018
Re-

measurement

Loss 
allowance 
1 July 2018

$'000 $'000 $'000

Amortised cost                 582                     60                642 

17. Future impact of accounting standards not yet effective

The department administers grants from the government for which there are no sufficiently specific performance obligations. The total of these grants in the 
2018-19 year was $496.889 million (refer note 15) and the administered grants are expected to continue being recognised as revenue upfront assuming no 
change to the current grant arrangements.

The department has completed its review of the impact of adoption of AASB 16 and has identified the following major impacts which are outlined below.

The department has reviewed the impact of AASB 1058 and AASB 15 and the impact is expected to be minimal. The department's main source of revenue are 
appropriations. The timing of recognition of these is based on when control of the funds passes to the department, which is usually on receipt of the funds. For 
revenue obtained from other sources, such as capital grants and contributions, the department will assess the impact as it occurs based on the funding 
agreement. 

During the 2018-19 financial year, the department held operating leases under AASB 117 from the Department of Housing and Public Works (DHPW) for non-
specialised, commercial office accommodation through the Queensland Government Accommodation Office (QGAO). Lease payments under these 
arrangements totalled $2.185 million. The department has been advised by Queensland Treasury and DHPW that, effective 1 July 2019, amendments to the 
framework agreements that govern QGAO will result in the above arrangements being exempt from lease accounting under AASB 16. This is due to DHPW 
having substantive substitution rights over the non-specialised, commercial office accommodation used within these arrangements. From 2019-20 onwards, 
costs for these services will continue to be expensed as supplies and services expense when incurred.

The department has also been advised by Queensland Treasury and DHPW that, effective 1 July 2019, motor vehicles provided under DHPW’s QFleet 
program will be exempt from lease accounting under AASB 16. This is due to DHPW holding substantive substitution rights for vehicles provided under the 
scheme. From 2019-20 onward, costs for these services will continue to be expensed as supplies and services expense when incurred. Existing QFleet leases 
were not previously included as part of non-cancellable operating lease commitments.

Loans and receivables

(b) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
These standards will first apply to the department's 2019-20 financial statements. The new requirements may result in a change to the timing of revenue 
recognition of the department. As such, some revenue may need to be deferred to a later reporting period to the extent that the department has received cash 
but has not satisfied its performance obligations. 

(a) AASB 16 Leases
This standard will first apply to the department's 2019-20 financial statements and will replace the current lease accounting standards.

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the expected impacts of new or amended Australian Accounting Standards issued but with future effective 
dates are set out below:

Trade and other receivables

The department applied AASB 9 Financial Instruments for the first time in 2018-19. Comparative information for 2017-18 has not been restated and continues 
to be reported under AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new 
accounting standard are described below.
Classification and measurement
Under AASB 9, debt instruments are categorised into one of three measurement bases – amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification is based on two criteria:

- whether the financial asset’s contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest'
- the department’s business model for managing the assets.

The department’s debt instruments comprise of receivables disclosed in note 8. They were classified as Loans and Receivables as at 30 June 2018 under 
AASB 139 and were measured at amortised cost. These receivables are held for collection of contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest. As such, they continue to be measured at amortised cost beginning 1 July 2018.
AASB 9 requires the loss allowance to be measured using a forward-looking expected credit loss approach, replacing the AASB 139 incurred loss approach. 
AASB 9 also requires a loss allowance to be recognised for all debt instruments other than those held at fair value through profit or loss.
On adoption of the AASB 9 new impairment model, the department recognised additional impairment losses of $60,000 on its trade and other receivables. 
This resulted in a decrease in the opening accumulated surplus of $60,000. Below is a reconciliation of the ending impairment allowance under AASB 139 to 
the opening loss allowance under AASB 9.

AASB 139 measurement category
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Accountable Officer of Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural 
Affairs 

Report on the audit of the financial report 
Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Department of Local Government, Racing 
and Multicultural Affairs. 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the department's financial position as at 30 June 2019, and 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended  

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position and statement of assets 
and liabilities by major departmental service as at 30 June 2019, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and 
statement of comprehensive income by major departmental service for the year then ended, 
notes to the financial statements including summaries of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, and the management certificate. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the department in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the department for the financial report 

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for 
such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
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The Accountable Officer is also responsible for assessing the department's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the department or to 
otherwise cease operations.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the department's internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the department. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the department's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
department's ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my 
opinion. I base my conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the department to 
cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the Accountable Officer regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2019: 

a) I received all the information and explanations I required. 

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping 
of accounts were complied with in all material respects. 

 

 

19 August 2019 

 

Patrick Flemming Queensland Audit Office 
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane 
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Contacts

Brisbane 
Brisbane office 
Telephone: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
Visit: Level 34, 1 William Street, Brisbane 
Post: PO Box 15009
City East Queensland 4002

Northern Region 
Cairns office 
Telephone: +61 7 4037 3400
Visit: Level 11, Cairns Corporate Tower, 15 Lake Street, Cairns
Post: PO Box 3038 
Cairns Queensland 4870

Townsville office 
Telephone: +61 7 4758 3472
Visit: Level 4, 445 Flinders Street, Townsville 
Post: PO Box 5666 
Townsville Queensland 4810

Rockhampton office 
Telephone: +61 7 4924 2913
Visit: Level 2, 209 Bolsover Street, Rockhampton
Post: PO Box 113 
Rockhampton Queensland 4700

Southern Region  
Maroochydore office 
Telephone: +61 7 5352 9711
Visit: Mike Ahern Building, 12 First Avenue, Maroochydore 
Post: PO Box 1129 
Maroochydore Queensland 4558

Maryborough office 
Telephone: +61 7 4122 0409
Visit: Moira Hansen Building, 123 Wharf Street, Maryborough
Post: PO Box 73 
Maryborough Queensland 4650

Bundaberg office
Telephone: +61 7 4303 7564
Visit: GP Superclinic Building, 1st floor, 14 Branyan Street, Bundaberg  
Post: PO Box 73 
Maryborough Queensland 4650

Toowoomba office
Telephone:  +61 7 4616 7313
Visit: Ground Floor, West Side Entrance, 128 Margaret Street, Toowoomba
Post: PO Box 825
Toowoomba Queensland 4350
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Compliance Checklist 

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual report 
reference

Letter of 
compliance

A letter of compliance from the accountable 
officer or statutory body to the relevant 
Minister/s

ARRs – section 7 3

Accessibility Table of contents

Glossary

ARRs – section 9.1 1

Public availability ARRs – section 9.2 Accessibility 
information

Interpreter service statement Queensland Government 
Language Services Policy

ARRs – section 9.3

Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968

ARRs – section 9.4

Information Licensing QGEA – Information 
Licensing

ARRs – section 9.5

General 
information

Introductory Information ARRs – section 10.1 4

Machinery of Government changes ARRs – section 10.2, 31 
and 32

N/A

Agency role and main functions ARRs – section 10.2 6

Operating environment ARRs – section 10.3 8

Non-financial 
performance

Government’s objectives for the community ARRs – section 11.1 20

Other whole-of-government plans / specific 
initiatives

ARRs – section 11.2 10

Agency objectives and performance indicators ARRs – section 11.3 20

Agency service areas and service standards ARRs – section 11.4 27

Financial 
performance

Summary of financial performance ARRs – section 12.1 31

Governance – 
management and 
structure

Organisational structure ARRs – section 13.1 7

Executive management ARRs – section 13.2 36

Government bodies (statutory bodies and  
other entities)

ARRs – section 13.3 39

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 
1994

ARRs – section 13.4

48

Queensland public service values ARRs – section 13.5 34
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual report 
reference

Governance – risk 
management and 
accountability

Risk management ARRs – section 14.1 45

Audit committee ARRs – section 14.2 45

Internal audit ARRs – section 14.3 46

External scrutiny ARRs – section 14.4 47

Information systems and recordkeeping ARRs – section 14.5 48

Governance – 
human resources

Strategic workforce planning and performance ARRs – section 15.1 49

Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment Directive No.04/18 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy 
and Retrenchment 

ARRs – section 15.2

51

Open Data Statement advising publication of information ARRs – section 16 Accessibility 
information

Consultancies ARRs – section 33.1 https://data.
qld.gov.au

Overseas travel ARRs – section 33.2 https://data.
qld.gov.au

Queensland Language Services Policy ARRs – section 33.3 https://data.
qld.gov.au

Financial 
statements

Certification of financial statements FAA – section 62

FPMS – sections 42, 43 
and 50

ARRs – section 17.1

82

Independent Auditor’s Report FAA – section 62

FPMS – section 50

ARRs – section 17.2

83

FAA  Financial Accountability Act 2009 
FPMS  Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019
ARRs Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies
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